NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Wednesday, December 11, 2019
9:00 A.M.

MEETING LOCATION:

Laxalt Building
401 N. Carson Street, 2™ Floor
Carson City, NV 89701

Las Vegas Video Location
Division of Tourism — Conference Room
4000 S. Eastern Ave. Suite 240
Las Vegas, NV 89119

Phone Conference Call Number:
888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739






Pt
NEVADA

TRAVELNEVADA.COM

NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
Regular Meeting of the Commission on Tourism
Wednesday, December 11, 2019 - 9:00 A.M.

MEETING LOCATION: VIDEO CONFERENCE LOCATION:
NCOT - Laxalt Building Las Vegas Tourism Office

401 N. Carson St. 2" Floor 4000 S. Eastern Ave. #240
Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 89119

TELECONFERENCE NUMBER:
888-363-4735; Access Code 4878739

COMMISSIONERS
Lt. Governor Kate Marshall, Chair*
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair* Phil DeLane* Steve Hill*
Herb Santos, Jr.* Mike Vaswani* Pam Robinson™*
Brian Krolicki* Cynthia Mun* Bob Stoldal
Edward Estipona Richard Arnold Julie Pazina*

*\Voting members

THIS MEETING 15 IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW” AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT FOUR OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Museum, Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Nevada State Purchasing, Carson City, Nevada
Las Vegas-Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, Nevada
Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority, Reno, Nevada

Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

1|rPage



Nevada Commission on Tourism
December 11, 2019 | Agenda

STATEMENT OF THE COMMISSION

Action may be taken on those items denoted "For Possible Action”.

Items on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.

Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration.

An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

No action may be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until that matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken (NRS 241.020).
Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public record. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.

>

o

&

AGENDA
Opening

Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting — Lt. Governor Kate Marshall
Roll Call and Determination of Quorum~— Lt. Governor Kate Marshall

Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and
speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

For Possible Action — Approval of Minutes

Approval of the July 12, 2019 NCOT Phone Meeting Minutes
Approval of the September 24, 2019 NCOT Meeting Minutes

Welcome to New NCOT Commissioners Julie Pazina and Kristin Windbigler

For Discussion and Possible Action - F¥Y20 2™ Cycle Rural Marketing Grants
Recommended Allocation

Discussion and approval of grant allocation as recommended by the Territory Advisory Committee.
We received 97 applications associated with the FY2020 2" Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Program



Nevada Commission on Tourism
December 11, 2019 | Agenda

from 48 organizations requesting $5814,575.38. We are recommending awarding $301,575.00 in FY20
funding.

Grant funds are intended exclusively to develop, promote and improve tourism to and within
the State of Nevada. They may be used for no other purpose, and must be obligoted and/or
expended for invoices due in the same fiscal year as awarded. Grant funds will be used by the
Division of Tourism on behalf of a grantee or distributed to political subdivisions of the state, to
fair and recreation boaords, and to local or regional organizations, which promete travel and
tourism. For the complete grant guidelines, please visit TravelNevada.biz.

Proposed motion: The Nevada Commission on Tourism approves the expenditure of
$301,575.00 for the FY20 2™ Cycle Rural Marketing Grants to the recipients as outlined in the
staff recommendation (or as revised per Commission discussion).

F. Discussion Only — Preview of New TravelNevada.biz Website

The Travel Nevada Public Relations team will present an overview of the new design and content
featured on this industry-facing website.

G. Discussion Only - Agency Reports
F1. Chair Report
F2. Division of Tourism
F2.1 Quarterly Staff Update (July - September)
F2.2 Budget Update

H3. Nevada Indian Commission Update, Stacey Montooth, Executive Director

H. Discussion Only - Upcoming Meetings
2020 Proposed Full Commission Meeting Schedule
I. For Discussion and Possible Action - Interviews for the Director of DTCA

The Commission will interview, in no particular order, the following candidates: Melissa Evans, Jeff
Klein, Ari Levin, Tony Lyle and Brenda Nebesky. The Commission will also discuss, deliberate, and
possibly decide which three candidates should be submitted to the Lt. Governor as her
recommendation to the Governor for appointment pursuant to NRS 231.210.

Public Hearing on Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulation
Wednesday, December 11, 2019 - 1:00 p.m.

J. Discussion Only - Public Hearing on LCB File No. R080-18

Public comment regarding LCB File No. RO80-18 is welcomed and will be accepted. LCB File No.
ROB0-18 relates to the creation of provisions governing the procedure for any interested person to
petition the Commission on Tourism of the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs to adopt, file,
amend, or repeal any regulation. Any written comment received by December 5, 2019 will be read
into the record.

3|Page



Nevada Commission on Tourism
December 11, 2019 | Agenda

K. For Possible Action - Consideration of Public Comment Received Regarding
Proposed Regulation and Adoption of LCB File No. R080-18

The Commission on Tourism of the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs will consider and
discuss public comment received during the public hearing. The Commission on Tourism may make
changes to LCB File No. R080-18, if it determines these changes are necessary after discussion and
based on the public comment received. The Commission on Tourism may vote to adopt LCB File No.
RO80-18.

L. Commissioner Comments
M. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers
are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

N. For Possible Action - Adjournment

The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020{2) by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, (775) 687-0621 or by email to
ddykes@travelnevada.com. Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada and online at www.travelnevada.biz

Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations ar assistance at the meeting should notify Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes at the Nevada Commission on Tourism at (775) 687-0621 or ddykes@travelnevada.com.

4




July 12, 2019
NCOT Meeting

Draft Minutes
For Approval

/5N
«NEVADA-

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA






Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
July 12, 2019

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 9:30 a.m. on July 12, 2019 at 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 and by phone conference.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor Kate Marshall, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

Commissioners Present:

Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall, Chair
Brian Krolicki

Phil Delone

Bob Stoldal

Herb Santos, Jr.

Denice Miller

Pam Robinson

Edward Estipona

Steve Hill

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Bob Cashell

Richard Arnold

Mike Vaswani

Cindy Carano, Vice Chair

Cynthia Mun

Staff present:

Brenda Nebesky, Deputy Director
Emmy Kawchack

Sarah Bradley, DAG

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes

Kate Wilson, Lt. Governor’s Office



Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

MARSHALL:

DAG:

MARSHALL:

DYKES:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

HILL:

MARSHALL:

MILLER:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

We'll give it a couple more minutes. | think we may have quorum. Who just got
on?

[inaudible] Deputy Attorney General.

Please tell me if the meeting was properly noticed and posted.

Dee Dykes for the record. Lt. Governor this meeting has been posted in
accordance with NRS at seven locations and two websites.

Alright. | call this meeting to order. | will take roll again for the open meeting.
Cindy Carano? Herb Santos?

Here.

Brian Krolicki? Brian? Brian was here. Bob Cashell? Rich Arnold? Phil DelLone?
Here.

I'm here.

Mike Vaswani? Cynthia Mun? Bob Stoldal?
Here.

Steve Hill?

Here.

Denise Miller?

Here.

Pam Robinson?

I'm here.

Edward Estipona?

Here.



Public Comment

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, moving on to agenda item number D. Public Comment. Since we are all
on the phone and not in a physical location, does anyone want to make public
comment on the phone?

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. No there is not anyone in Carson to make
public comment.

FY20 Marketing Campaign Creative

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

Thank you Brenda. We'll move on to agenda item number C. This is the
marketing campaign creative. We have gone through this at our last meeting
and there were some questions. BVK offered to remove some images. You
have in front of you an image library for the creative. Are there any comments
or thoughts?

| would just like to say, based on feedback from Commissioners in the full
Commission meeting on June 19", the Marketing Sub-committee was convened,
and they revisited image selections for print and digital placement. The creative
files you received yesterday represent their recommended and approved
choices which eliminates all the images and ad copy that were questioned in
that meeting. Travel Nevada’'s CMO Emmy Kawchack is here and available if
there are any questions.

Thanks.

Herb Santos for the record. [inaudible] a great sense of being immersed in those
destinations. | think it is important that we bring the audience along for the
ride. But every thought that | had, I'm not sure about the selection for the
music did that, [inaudible] slows down which | think brings down the excitement
of the visuals. | like that the videos drive that the destination is best explored
with friends and family. | think we have the right visual which showcases
Nevada destination which highlights [inaudible] and outdoor communities. |
believe show [inaudible] adrenaline adventure will [inaudible] our target
traveler [inaudible] with Nevada brand [inaudible] climates and provides what
we always have in our advertising a call to action to visit Nevada. | just
[inaudible] the call to action with the background music [inaudible]. That is my
concern.



MARSHALL:

KAWCHACK:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

KAWCHACK:

DELONE:

KAWCHACK:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, thanks. Other comments, other thoughts, then I'll give the creative folks
a chance to respond.

Emmy Kawchack for the record. | just want to address to Commissioner Santos’
remarks on the music. The music has been pieced together and we are working
on the edit right now to make sure that we mirror the energy that is shown in
the ads. Thank you for your comments.

Other comments?

Bob Stoldal for the record. The stills and the video are outstanding not only
from an artistic standpoint but capturing [inaudible]. Really a wonderful work
because you have both the art and the message [inaudible].

Thanks for that Bob. I'm very impressed. Other comments, thoughts?

Madame Chair, this is Brian. If | may continue with Herb’'s comments, |
understand that the music is being contemplated or edited as we listen here,
but could you explain why that music was adopted or what was behind it? That
might settle Herb's concerns.

This is Emmy Kawchack for the record. The music that was placed in the video
you all have seen is by a very famous band, but we can’t afford it unfortunately.
But what we are concerned with it's really synthetic where we are really going
after is something that was ear catching if you will if you are hearing it from
another room. Something that sounds a little less commercial, less mainstream
to really try to capture people and feature Nevada as a little eccentric, a little bit
different, a little bit quirky and | think we are on the path to finding some music.
The music that we're settling on right now is a little less synthetic than the
music you hear in the comp. We’d be happy to send that around to anyone
wants to see it. [inaudible] voiceover and putting the final touches on it.

Phil DelLone for the record. A lot of the imagery was focused on areas around
Southern Nevada. Is that the only imagery for the entire state or is that to
demonstrate the rural areas around Elko, Ely, or Austin, or Eureka or Reno or
Lake Tahoe. Is that the entire campaign?

Emmy Kawchack for the record. We shot in Southern Nevada in early May
when we were still getting some snow up here in the north. We have a film
crew here this week scouting for the northern shoot which should occur in
September.



DELONE:

ROBINSON:

DELONE:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

DELONE:

MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

KAWCHACK:

ESTIPONA:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you.

This is Pam Robinson. | wanted to commend the creative team and the
marketing team for looking at the comments that were made and keeping
images that still expressed the quirky and fun nature and interesting aspects of
Nevada but eliminating some that had more concern for some of the
Commissioners that did not see them in keeping what we are trying to sell. |
think in that respect, a job well done, thank you.

Move to approve it.

Okay. | have a motion to approve, do | have a second?

I'll second.

The move to approve, was that Phil?

Yes.

Any discussion?

Approve the motion pending that they are still working on the music, right?

I'll amend my motion to make my friend Herb happy.

We have a move to approve with a motion to make Herb happy. Any
discussion?

Edward Estipona for the record. | just want to make sure that when we shoot in
the north, we be sure to capture the culture and arts as part of the campaign
because [inaudible] | know there is a lot of options there. | also thought that in
pinning down some of the nightlife, to find more appropriate shots to make
sure we fill some of that more nightlife shots as well.

Emmy Kawchack for the record. Yes, that is the plan.

Thank you.

Any more discussion? Hearing none. All in favor say aye.

Aye.



MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Any opposed? Motion passes.

Commissioner Comments

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:
Public Comment
MARSHALL:

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

WILSON:

Moving on to agenda item number D, Commissioner Comments. | really want to
thank your team for coming back and all their work. | want to mention to
Commissioners that Brenda Nebesky and her staff came to my office to check in
and to make sure they were answering all the concerns of the Board. | really
appreciate when staff [inaudible] on their own initiative, | think that shows a
dedicated and hard-working staff. | want to thank you for that. Is there any
other Commissioner comments?

Thank you Lt. Governor.

Moving to agenda item number D. Public Comment at the end of our agenda.

This is Kate Wilson for the record. | just wanted to make a quick note, Brenda,
Emmy and | spoke about this. If anyone ever has questions about the
Commission packet prior to the meeting, you all feel free to reach out with
questions so that the staff can be prepared to address them during the meeting.
They have been incredibly helpful in that. 1 encourage the other Commissioners
to reach out to them with their questions in the interim.

Stoldal, Las Vegas. When might be the next public opportunity for an update on
the search for the Director?

Katie do you want to speak to what's going on there?

We are in the process of going through the RPF for a headhunter. it's more of
an internal process. Brenda and her staff are compiling the RFPs that will go
through the necessary steps to hire one of them. Once one of them has been
chosen, Ill reach out to the original sub-committee and work with the
headhunter to go through the process of getting those applicants to you.

Is the goal of the headhunter to bring in three or four or one person? What is
the goal.

Different headhunters have a different threshold for [inaudible] and that is
something that Brenda and staff are taking into consideration. Brenda please
jump in. Some of the RFPs say that they will provide a guarantee of a certain

6



NEBESKY:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

ROBINSON:

WILSON:

SANTOS:

WILSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

number of qualified candidates. | think whomever we decide we will let you
know what their threshold is for what they will provide.

Brenda Nebesky for the record. That's correct. In order for the agency to solicit
for an informal RFP, we’ll get three quotes from head hunting agencies and each
will have its own set of criteria for the deliverable. The one we are holding as a
benchmark because they have a niche within the tourism hospitality industry
has seven gualified candidates that they would provide for interview. Then
would recommend three for final interview.

Well, if they recommend three for final interview, I'm confused as to what roll
the Commission will play if they are only providing three for interview and the
responsibility is to give the Lt. Governor and Governor three.

i think they will provide seven to the sub-committee and then the sub-
committee could decide which will go to the full commission.

Thank you. | just want to be sure the whole committee has the opportunity to
provide [inaudible}

This is Pam. My understanding is there are also resumes that have been
submitted since our last meeting. If that is the case, will they be provided to
whichever headhunter is selected to be considered or will that process only go
through that headhunter shop?

Kate Wilson. I've only seen one. I'd be happy to forward that or have the sub-
committee review it to see if it is worthwhile to go forward. | think we have a
lot of flexibility once those people are provided to us from the headhunter. |
think if there is a one-off that we would like to interview we should discuss that
with the headhunter. Commission Robinson, if there are more applicates that
you are aware of, please let me know because | have only received one since
the last meeting.

Herb Santos for the record. Now I'm confused. If the headhunter is going to
submit names to our search sub-committee and we have names submitted, why
would we ever give those to the headhunter who would get credit. My thought
is that the headhunter submits whomever he/she wants to the cornmittee we’ll
pick the best of the best to go to our whole beard to determine which three to
go to the Governor.

Yeah, I'm sorry | misspoke. | want to make sure you knew where we were in
the process and there wasn’t a potential [inaudible]. We’re not sure which one

7



KROLICKI:

STOLDAL:

UNIDENTIFIED:

STOLDAL:

WILSON:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

of the three we’ll ultimately go with. | was just stating that if the headhunter
provides seven and we refer three resumes that we actually think deserve to be
in the mix, | don’t see why the sub-committee wouldn’t be able to interview the
total of 10 in front of the whole committee. Again, a lot of this is still in flux as
the staff works through the RFP, once we have a better understanding of
specifics, any questions or concerns you might have, | will make sure to send an
email around for clarification.

Madame Chair, Brian Krolicki again. | totally support what I've heard. lust for
clarification, when you do these RFPs make sure to carve out the applications
that would not compensate the headhunter for being accepted [inaudible] get
the job [inaudible] and percentage of current salary and those types of things.
Both Commissioner Stoldal and Santos are crystal clear. | hope after the sub-
committee does its work, the whole committee does get to interview more than
three people. That there is a choice that truly comes to the full Commission.

Stoldal for the record. finaudible] We haven’t reposted this job formally yet. |
thought the last one was closed, have we reopened it so anybody can apply? Or
has the one come in [inaudible].

[inaudible]

So, can we accept the resume, or do we have to have the position officially
opened?

In speaking to the DAG, the statute is pretty flexible on how we find our
applicates. It's just three recommendations to the Lt. Governor from the board.
I do not think we have to [inaudible] unless that is what the board would like to
do. It is my understanding we want to move forward with the headhunting.
The only thing is what Commissioner Robinson mentioned is resumes coming in,
like | said, I've only seen one. If there are other or people who you feel should
be included please send those to me but know unless the board would like to
fully open the search again, it will just be the headhunter and any of these one
offs.

| would support [inaudible] with the headhunter to make sure they give us top
guality, so they aren’t beat out by someone else’s resume.

This is Kate Marshall. What I'm going to do is let staff take all the comments
from the board members and I'm going to let them negotiate with the executive
search companies and figure out the best way to move forward.



NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

Adjournment

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | July 12, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I will coordinate with the Lt. Governor’s office to make sure our RFP is written
with great specificity about our process and once we solicit three proposals, we
won’t contract with someone unless approved by the sub-committee.

Bob thanks for your input on the search. It helped to clarify some things. We
don’t have more public comment.

| will take a motion for adjournment if people would like that.
Herb Santos for the record. Move to adjourn.

Thank you. Do | have a second?

Second. Phillip DeLone

All those in favor of adjournment say aye.

Aye.

Any opposed? Do you guys want to hang on? With that, have a great day guys.
Thank you.

The meeting adjourned at 9:55 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism






September 24, 2019
NCOT Meeting

Draft Minutes
For Approval

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA






Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
September 24, 2019

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 1:00 p.m. on September 24, 2019 at
401 N. Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 and by phone conference.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor Kate Marshall, Chair, called the meeting to order at p.m.

Commissioners Present:

Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall, Chair
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair

Phil DelLone

Herb Santos, Jr.

Brian Krolicki

Cynthia Mun

Pam Robinson

Edward Estipona

Bob Stoldal

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Richard Arnold

Mike Vaswani

Steve Hill

Staff present:

Brenda Nebesky, Deputy Director
Emmy Kawchack

Yennifer Diaz

Henna Rasul, DAG

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes

Kate Wilson, Lt. Governor’s Office

Guests present:

Fletch Brunelle, LVCVA

Bill Arent, City of Las Vegas

Charles Jahnson, Johnson Consulting
Phillip Brohn, Fisher Brothers, Area 15
Allison Carpenter, Brand USA

Dillon Hosier, IACAN



Guests, continued
Tiffany East, East PR

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

MARSHALL:

DYKES:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

CARANO:

NEBESKY:

DELONE:

NEBESKY:

BRUNELLE:

NEBESKY:

SANTOS:

NEBESKY:

KROLICKI:

NEBESKY:

MUN:

All right, it is 1:00, so I'm going to call the Nevada Commission on Tourism to
order for Tuesday, September 24™ at 1:00 meeting. [If the Secretary could
please tell me whether the meeting was properly noticed and posted?

Dee Dykes, for the record. | can verify that the Agenda has been posted at eight
locations and onto websites per NRS.

Thank you. Can you please do roll call.
Lieutenant Governor Marshall?

Here.

Commissioner Carano?

Present.

Commissioner DeLone?

Present.

Commissioner Hill?

Fletch Brunelle is here for Mr. Hill.
Wonderful. Herb Santos?

Present.

Commissioner Vaswani? Absent/excused. Commissioner Krolicki?
Participating by telephone today.
Thank you. Commissioner Mun?

Present.



NEBESKY:
ROBINSON:
NEBESKY:
MARSHALL:
NEBESKY:
ESTIPONA:
NEBESKY:
STOLDAL:
NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:
Approval of Minutes

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:
CARANO:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Commissioner Robinson?

I am here.

We do have a quorum, Lieutenant Governor.

Thank you. Did you want to call the non-voting members?

Yes, | - let me do that, | apologize. Commissioner Estipona?

Present.

Commissioner Arnold? Absent/excused. Commissioner Stoldal?

Present.

Thank you.

Okay, thank you. So, that was Agenda Item A. We have a quorum. Now moving
to Agenda Item B, you will notice that there are two opportunities for public
comment, at the beginning and at the end, so is there any public comment in
Vegas? All right, hearing none, is there any public comment on the phone? All

right, is there any public comment in Carson?

For the record, Brenda Nebesky, no, there is not.

Okay, thank you. There will be another opportunity for public comment at the
end. So, moving on to Agenda ltem C, Approval of Minutes. Are there any
edits, additions, you know, commentary, what have you, on last meeting’s
Minutes? All right, hearing none, I'll take a motion.

I move to accept the Minutes.

Second.

All right, | have a2 motion and | have a second. Is there any discussion? All right,
hearing none, all those in favar of approving the Minutes, say aye.

Aye.



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Introduction & Summary of the Nevada Revised Statutes Governing Tourism Improvement Districts
and the Nevada Commission on Tourism’s Role

MARSHALL:

RASUL:

MARSHALL:

RASUL:

MARSHALL:

RASUL:

MARSHALL:

RASUL:

MARSHALL:

Any opposed? Motion carries. | always [ove the way it moves so fast in the
beginning. All right, Agenda Item D, do we have Counsel to the Commission on
Tourism, if they could come, because we have something coming up that is not
a common agenda item, and so could they come up and talk a little bit about
what our role is.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, Henna Rasul, Senior Deputy
Attorney General. | am here on behalf of Sarah Bradley who is typically your
Counsel. She briefly was able to go through this item with me yesterday, and
it's my understanding basically that the focus is going to be on NRS 271A
subsection 6 that will guide you, and it's more clearly described in the next
Agenda Item E2.1. That's basically what will guide you as far as your motions
will be concerned.

Then the next statute that you will be reviewing that’s pertinent to E2.2 is
explained in more detail in that section. Once you approach these E sections |
can give you further guidance if you do need that.

This is Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall. ) think you were referring to NRS
271A.

Yes.
.80.
Oh .80, sorry, yes.

Okay. So, could you please talk about what the Commission is required to do
for purposes of the next Agenda item under the statute?

It's my understanding that pursuant to that statute, Subsection 6, there should
be a proposal or an analysis that was done, and the Commission is now going to
review that proposal and either agree with it or not. Basically, what they're
going to look at is whether a preponderance of the increase in the proceeds
from sales and use tax identify pursuant to Subsection 5 of the statute will be
attributable to transactions with tourists who are not residents of the state.

Okay. Do we have any other comments, questions, on Agenda Item D? Okay,
thank you very much for that information. | appreciate it. In your packets, guys,

4



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

you will see that you have the statute in front of you to refer to for the
Commission’s understanding, better understanding, of what their role is in this.

Public Hearing Regarding the Proposed Tourism Improvement District for Area 15, Las Vegas, Nevada

MARSHALL:

ARENT:

Okay, moving on to Agenda Item E, this is opportunity for the Tourism
Commission to hear about the proposed Tourism Improvement District for Area
15 in Las Vegas, and | believe we have a presentation.

Good afternoon, Lieutenant Governor, Madame Chair, members of the
Commission. I'm Bill Arent, Director of Economic and Urban Development for
the City of Las Vegas. | do have a PowerPoint presentation which | think is fairly
succinct to explain what we're seeking from the Commission and explain the
projects.

Again, I'm Bill Arent, Director of Economic and Urban Development with the City
of Las Vegas. Why we're here today is the Tourism Improvement District
statute, which was referenced in the previous agenda item, requires a specific
process outlined in state law when a project is seeking an incentive known as a
Tourism Improvement District Incentive.

It's also commonly referenced in Nevada as STAR Bonds, which is acronym for
Sales Tax Anticipated Revenue Bonds. But the statute specifically is Nevada
Revised Statute 271A, and this is a part of the process as I'll explain during the
presentation. But before | explain exactly what we're seeking today, | wanted to
give an overview of the project of what is known as Area 15.

We do have a representative of the project sponsor and developer, Philip Brohn,
from Fisher Brothers who is attending the hearing in Las Vegas and can answer
any detail guestions about the project. The statute requires actually a
municipality or a local jurisdiction to actually sponsor legislation through a
process to consider a Tourism Improvement District so we’re actually appearing
on behalf of our project sponsor.

This project is known as Area 15. It's gotten a lot of press recently because one
of the anchor tenants is Meow Wolf, which is an artist collective from Santa Fe,
New Mexico, and is expanding nationally and potentially internationally and is
seeking to locate in this project.

The project itself is in Las Vegas, in the resort corridor. It is a 15-acre parcel of
land which is immediately south of the Palace Station Hotel Casino campus on
land that’s owned by the Fisher Brothers. And the project features 126,000

5



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

square feet of leasable retail space which includes space for Meow Wolf. It
includes indoor and outdoor event space. It includes food cart and retail kiosks,
onsite kitchen and commissary as well as parking.

This is showing the location of where the project is, and | think this map is really
illustrative of the fact that this is in the heart of the tourism corridor and the
project is really seeking to attract visitors not only from Las Vegas but also from
out-of-state visitors to come visit the project.

This is a closer drill down map of where the project is situated. So, you see here
Interstate 15 to the east. You see here to the south the Desert Inn Road flyover
arterial and then you see there to the north Sirius Avenue. So, this is in a largely
underdeveloped area which is an older, industrial, commercial corridor in the
heart of our city.

So, what is a Tourism Improvement District? It allows a project that is seeking
to develop an out of market retail experience to capture a portion of new sales
tax generated within the district. So, this is showing a map, or I'm sorry, a chart
of what portions of the sales tax would be captured by the district.

You see here specific tax rates, and this is a portion of the total sales tax rate in
Clark County which currently is 8.25 percent, and it shows what portions of the
sales tax the district captures. And so, this is all by statute. It wasn't negotiated
with the project developer or by the city. Itis all outlined in statute.

And you see here there are three specific line items which are captured, and
again, this is new sales tax generated on site within that specific site that was
identified on the previous map. You see here the top line which is sales tax.
That is the 2 percent tax that’s levied for going to the state general fund. Then
you see here a half percent rate which is for a basic city/county relief tax. And
then you see here a 1.75 percent which is a supplemental city/county relief tax.

By statute the district captures 75 percent of those tax rates. On the right-hand
column of that 2 percent, 75 percent is one and a half, and on down the line
with the half percent, 75 percent being the three-eights, and then you see there
one and three-quarters, and what that percent is. So, the gross effective sales
tax rate for the district, for the TID, is 4.25 percent. And that approximately is
3.19 as you see there outlined.

There is an administration fee that is authorized by statute which state taxation
can basically keep back from the district equal to 1.75 percent against the
eligible revenue from the district. So, when you subtract that, out the net tax

6



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

rate going to the district is 3.13 percent, and that’s 3.13 percent of gross sales
and only sales tax that is generated on-site by the project. So, our project
sponsor, Fisher Brothers, has asked for a Tourism Improvement District
incentive.

The statute allows the district to be created and capture sales tax for a period of
20 years. As a matter of policy in looking at what the overall costs of the project
is, the benefit of the project to the community, the benefit of the project to all
the local, state and local tax jurisdictions, and the fiscal impact of the project,
we at the City of Las Vegas felt it was a matter of good policy to set a cap or a
ceiling on the amount of sales tax that could be staying within the district.

And so, this was done at the discretion of the City of Las Vegas in cooperation
with our project sponsor. And so, what we are proposing is that the district
would receive the lesser of that amount authorized by statute or a maximum
annual contribution from the district of $688,000.

The reason we picked that number is there is a study done by a consultant,
Charles Johnsen Consulting, and their principal, Charles Johnson, is here with in
Carson City today, that projected what the total sales tax would be generated
onsite from the project, and it was project that in a stabilized year, meaning
when all the retailers are there, they're up and running and they're realizing
normal operations, that it would generate the potential of $688,000 annually.

The idea behind this ceiling is if revenues fall below the projection the developer
would get the benefit of that 3.13 percent. If revenues exceed projections, then
that benefit would be capped. It would be a hard ceiling. That would be a
contract that the city would enter into with the project developer and sponsor,
and so any excess above in that would be remitted back to the state and state
taxation.

We think this is good policy and it allows all the jurisdictions throughout the
state to budget what the impact of this project would be. The district would be
on a pay-go or pay as you go basis. And so, | mentioned earlier that this
incentive has been known in Nevada as STAR Bonds or Sales Tax Anticipated
Revenue Bonds.

The statute authorizes and allows the sponsoring jurisdiction, in this case for
this project, it would be us, the City of Las Vegas, to issue bonds, basically
monetizing that future sales tax revenue stream. We believe given the scale of
this project the investment that the private sponsor is making, that it is not



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

needed to do bonds and the developer has agreed with that, so the City of Las
Vegas will not be issuing bonds for this project.

Again, that will be memorialized in contracts directly between the City of Las
Vegas and the project sponsor. So, that also minimizes the risk to the city and
to taxpayers that if we issue bonds in anticipation of revenue accruing to this
district, ultimately, we don’t know what that revenue will be. It’s anticipated
revenue, so we will pay that revenue annually as it's collected.

If you can picture the flow of revenue would be, retailers are open, they would
remit their sales tax receipts directly to the state, state taxation, just like all
retailers do, and then the TID eligible retailers, those that are new into the
district, would be identified by state taxation, and the portion that is attributed
to this district, that 3.13 percent, would be captured by taxation, sent back
down through the City of Las Vegas so that it would be uitimately an agreement
should you approve it today.

And then the city of Las Vegas approves the district, state taxation would remit
the TID, the district eligible revenue, back to the City of Las Vegas, and then the
city would reimburse it directly into the project to offset project costs.

Also, we are limiting this district to this Phase 1 project which was that 15-acre
site. The developer has acquired a lot of real estate around that project. We
believe that this is enough of an anchor to catalyze other development and
investment in the area, and the developer does have plans for future phases.
We are not proposing to divert or capture any of those future sales tax revenues
from any future phases. It's just this initial phase which is on that 15-acre parcel
of land.

So, coming back, why are we here today, why are we here before the
Commission? In statute there's a requirement that the City of Las Vegas find,
and this is the section in statute. Would the project result in retailers locating in
the district, creating a substantial increase in sales tax revenue with a
preponderance of that increase being attributable to non-Nevada residents.

Your legal staff correctly pointed out that your charge is actually the very next
subsection, Subsection 6, and that calls for the Nevada Commission on Tourism
to hold a hearing regarding this same item. So, we do have our consultant here.
I’'m going to cover these slides and then refer to our consultant if you have any
technical questions about the study.



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

But the statute requires that the City of Las Vegas hire a consultant from a pre-
approved list of Tourism Improvement District Consultants that are approved by
the Nevada Commission on Tourism. So, we sent out a request for solicitation
for all the TID approved consultants that the state has, and Johnson Consulting
submitted a proposal and so we entered into a contract with this consultant.
The project developer has agreed to reimburse the city’s expense for this, but
this consultant is already on a pre-approved list.

And so the consultant, Johnson Consulting, found a methodology to determine
both the economic impact of the project, and you see here, | apologize, it's a
little bit small print. I'm not sure if you can see this, but all the program
elements, what is on site, the anchor attraction, the retail, the event space,
parking, then what revenue that will generate, what that will look like as total
visitors to the project, and then what of those visitors what is the visitation
spending from our average visitors that come to Las Vegas.

And that generates and economic impact to the project from direct and indirect
and induced spending as well as the fiscal impact of the project. So there is a
preponderance conclusion found in the final study that Johnson Consulting did,
and this is verbatim in the study, that “The preponderance of sales tax revenues
from on-site spending at this project, Area 15, is expected to be generated by
non-Nevada residents visiting Las Vegas accounting for 57.2 percent or just
under $400,000 in a stabilized year across all the various uses onsite at Area
15"

Over a 10-year period then that $400,000 annually accumulates to a $4M
number. The district itself is proposed to be a 20-year so you would just have to
double that getting to an 58M impact. And that's again the conclusion that
Johnson Consulting found.

This chart, the Sales Tax Projections, shows all the tax money coming into Clark
County from this project. So, I'm going to highlight item, or I'm sorry, year 2024,
So this shows a projection again based on the project and what is being
proposed, how much sales tax revenue will be generated directly by the project.

2024 was determined to be the stabilized year, so if you look at that year, in
that year, the total amount of sales tax generated on-site by the project is a
little over $1.8M. And then you see there of those amounts, what goes to the
other jurisdictions.

And so, you see here of that amount, if you look at the second highlighted bar,
that second highlighted bar shows a number of 688. That's intended to
reference $688,000 that would be generated for the district. In other words,

9



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

that's the $3.13 percent. So, if you think of the 8.25 as the total sales tax paid,
the 3.13 is the $688,000.

Where are the other monies going that are not captured by the district? You
see here the option tax, which is the local tax as well as the local schoo! support
tax. So those are two pieces of the sales tax paid by all the retailers on this
project that is not going into the district. So, zero dollars from local school
support tax is captured by the TID, zero from the option tax.

So of that $688,000, one way to think about it is if this project moved forward
without a district and again the developer is seeking this incentive in order to
move forward with it, the project, and but for this incentive the developer
would not be able to move forward according to the developer at the scale
that’s being proposed, but if this project was built without this incentive, of that
$688,000, that 2 percent, which is the sales tax which would otherwise go to the
state general fund, that amount is $439,000 annually.

With the TID that $439,000 is split up two ways, $329,000 or 75 percent of that
would go to the district and then $110,000 would go back to the state. So there
is a portion again of that state sales tax component, the 2 percent, and then the
basic city/county relief tax and the supplemental city/county relief tax that is
essentially captured by the district.

You see here the benefit and the scale of the project though. With this project,
with the new taxes being generated, over that 10-year period, $5.8M in new
taxes coming directly into the account for the local school support tax.

This is a case, and the idea and the philosophy behind this incentive is but for
this incentive this kind of project where tourism in Nevada would not happen or
would not happen at this scale. And that way we’re generating a lot of new
taxes, some of this stays and is captured by the TID, some of which goes to all
the other tax jurisdictions.

This slide shows how the 57 percent was determined, so you see here the
amount of spending, again which is from all of the uses combined. You see here
the direct spending, and this is across all areas, so it includes retail, it includes
tickets, it includes hotel nights, and you see here the total spending, the total
economic impact.

And then you see here the bottom-line impact on the retail tax benefit, again
being the $688,000 net new fiscal impact. Those are net new dollars coming into
the state that would otherwise not come in. That’s $394,000 annually, so think

10



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

of it roughly $400,000 annually in new taxes coming into the state that
otherwise wouldn’t come in above and beyond what stays within the TID
district.

Again, here you see total estimated spending and the tax benefit across the
entire project, not just for the anchor, Meow Wolf, but from all the retail, the
events and the entertainment space on-site.

The prior step to this, the city council met on August 7", the Las Vegas City
Council adopted a resolution to make similar findings that you're being asked to
make. Resolution R-39-2019 at the Las Vegas City Council on August 7 made the
findings that as a result of the project retailers will locate their businesses in the
district and there will be a substantial increase in new sales and use taxes from
those retailers, and then finally a preponderance of that increase will come from
people who are outside Nevada, Nevada tourists.

So where we're at in this process, we've gone through a public notice and
hearing process at our city council. There is an advisory step where we go to
the Board of County Commissioners. They heard this item on July 16" and their
County Manager, Yolonda King, issued a letter in general support of the project.

There were some concerns noted, but in that letter, it was part of the backup at
the city council meeting, they noted their general support for the project and
appreciated the policy steps that the city took to make sure the dollar amount
was defined and had a ceiling on it.

This findings resolution that the city council adopted was approved on August
7™, so the next step is I'm here before you today seeking your approval of this
preponderance finding, and then if you are so inclined to approve, the next step
after that would be we have to go back to our legislative body, the city council,
and adopt an ordinance by resolution at our upcoming city council meetings to
enact the district. Only after these final two steps happen would the district be
created.

So again, the action we are requesting today is that you make the determination
that a preponderance of the increase would come from non-Nevada residents
and you're relying on the study prepared by Johnson Consulting who again is
here with us today, and then approve the use of these monies under this
statute, NRS 360. This governs the flow of funds. We’re not taking the money
directly from retailers.

11



MARSHALL:

BROHN:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

BROHN:

MUN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

That follows the same path it always follows. Retailers send their sales tax
receipts to the state, to state taxation, but then what happens with that pot of
money, that new sales tax revenue that's created, that's distributed according
to the district between an agreement between Nevada Taxation and the City of
Las Vegas, and then we reinvest that back into the project. At that point we
would essentially be reimbursing the developer for expenses incurred by the
project.

That concludes my presentation. I'm glad to answer any questions about the
city's role in this project, our recommendation for approval. Again, our project
sponsor Is joining us in Las Vegas, Philip Brohn from Fisher Brothers, if you have
questions about the project.

We also have the city's legal counsel, Kendra Follette of Sherman and Howard,
that was advising us on the legal process. Should you have any questions of a

legal nature of me I'm going to defer to Ms. Follette. Thank you for your
consideration.

Thank you. |appreciated that presentation. It was very thorough, and | think it
answered a lot of questions. Is there anything that you would like to add?

Yeah, I'd just like to thank the city for their partnership and bring this matter
forward to the Commission. Sorry, my name is Phillip Brohn, 8-r-o—h-n. And
I"'m representing the developer, Fisher Brothers, Area 15.

Are there any questions from members of the Commission?

Ido.

Yeah. Okay, Cynthia Mun.

Cynthia Mun, for the record. A couple of questions regarding the proposed
incentive. You say it's a 20-year Tourism District for 20 years. And then there
was this idea of that when it is a normal operating timeframe. What timeframe
is that? Is that a year from after it opens, is that two years after it opens?
Cause it says it would have some kind ofa —

Ramp up.

Ramp up, right, exactly. So when is that?

12



BROHN:

ARENT:

MUN:

BROHN:

MUN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

So, for the purposes of this study, Bill, | believe we're referring to 2024 is that
year of stabilization.

I thank you, Lieutenant Governor and Madame Chair, through you to
Commissioner Mun, I'll answer that question two ways. So, first the year 2024
was picked because that was a stabilized year of when they think they’'ll have
full retail sales. But to answer your question more directly, the district is
created if and when the city of Las Vegas passes that final ordinance.

So, if the ordinance is adopted October 16" the district would be created. From
that point forward the clock starts, and it would be a 20-year period essentially
from 2019. So, the project is due to be finished later in the year, November or
December is my understanding, so the district essentially would turn on in 2019,
run for a 20-year period, so through 2039. The purpose of using that 2024 date
was simply to try to come up with a reasonable cap or ceiling on the amount of
money going into the district.

In the event that this is wildly successful, and | know our partner in Las Vegas,
Mr. Brohn, anticipates it being so, we wanted to know from a budgeting
standpoint for Las Vegas where in effect the jurisdiction as well as all the
jurisdictions throughout the state, we can budget for this, and we know how
much money is coming in, how much money is going out.

The significance of that 2024 year is only meant te show what is the year that
we think there’'ll be a full retail sales year. But the district itself would run from
2019 to 2039.

Great. Thank you. I'm really excited for this project, but | did have a couple of
other questions cause |'m better with numbers of people than numbers in terms
of sales and all that. So, what kind of numbers of visitors do you expect in terms
of like how does that ramp up.

Madame Commissioner, Philip Brohn, here for your question. The baseline that
we are looking at relates primarily to our anchor tenant, and that's Meow Wolf
currently in Santa Fe. They are tracking 450,000 visitors annually. There's a
belief that will be substantially increased, potentially as much as a million. So,
we believe it’s a million plus in terms of annual visitors. Once again, not from
day one. There will be a built up to get to that point.

Is that the number you used for the projections?

13



BROHN:

MUN:

BROHN:

JOHNSON:

MUN:

JOHNSON:

MUN:

BROHN:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

ARENT:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

You know, | would defer to potentially Mr. Johnson in terms of what number is
actually stipulated in the report.

| mean projections are such that you can use any number and you can project,
right, so | just needed to know like where did we start?

Yeah, | think Mr. Johnson can speak to the methodology and be helpful to you.
Hi, Charles Johnson President of Johnson Consulting. Yes, we componentized
the demand and analyzed it. We have a 750,000 stabilized attendance at Meow
Wolf and big picture we have another 200,000 to 250,000 people visiting the
grounds for shopping, for entertainment, as well as the social and
entertainment space that is provided there. And then we used that as our basis
for our collections, and if it's higher than that, then so be it.

Great, so it—

[crosstalk] it gets earn out on what he generates up to that ceiling.

So you would say that's more of a conservative number?

We would hope that's conservative. We would like to beat it from the
developer’s perspective.

Right.
Thank you very much. Are there any other questions from the Commissioners?

I'd like to call for the questions, Lieutenant Governor, if we can introduce a
motion unless there is other questions.

Who was that that made a call for questions?

Actually, that was Phil DeLone. And this is Cindy Carano, and | have a question
about the actual computations here.

Yes.
Do you include not only retail, but admission tickets in the retail price — taxes?

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor and Madame Chair, through you to
Commissioner Carano. The Tourism Improvement District, that $688,000

14



CARANO:

ARENT:

BROHN:

MUN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

number is only retail sales. That does not include ticket tax; it does not inciude
overnight lodging. There are other exhibits in the study itself in order to
determine the total fiscal impact to the state. You, of course, have to factor in
all those other revenues coming in from overnight lodging, from ticket sales,
from other madified business tax and so forth.

So, there are other tax revenues, public tax revenues, coming into the state, but
for the purpose of the Tourism Improvement District, it only captures retail
sales, and it only captures that percent that’s stated in the statute and it only
captures on-site, meaning on the project, that 15-acre parcel.

Okay, thank you. That's what | thought. And secondly, | have a question about
your marketing to the tourists, the out-of-state, how is the corridor, how do
these people get to this area? It seems to be on the other side of the freeway,
and I'm not familiar with that area at this time.

Thank you, again, Madame Chair, through you to Commissioner Carano. | think
this is against the resort corridor, but you're right. It is kind of a challenge
because it's on the west side of the 15, so you have the arterial that flies over,
you have the Sahara to the south. There is some new improved access
southbound Rancho because of Project Neon.

You can actually get behind or east of Palace Station, so you can get to the
project site through there, so | think the main entrance would likely be off of
Sahara coming off the Resort Carridor.

But that is a challenge, and | think one of the reasons why our project sponsor
has asked for help is they have to get their consumers to this site, so it’s not on
the Las Vegas Boulevard, but it is in the Resort Corridor. | don’t know - Philip,
I'l] ask Philip Brohn as the project sponsor, | don’t know if you have anything to
add.

Sure. Thank you, Mr. Arent. Yes, absolutely, there is — it’s not an easy site to
lacate, Philip Brohn here for the developer. We believe rideshares will be an
important element of getting folks to the site, and we're working with some
partnerships with major rideshare companies to highlight and market Area 15 to
Strip visitors. It will also entail shuttle buses, and we have plentiful parking in
which people want to drive their own vehicles as well.

This is Cynthia Mun for the record. What's the projected like budget for this
entire project?

15



BROHN:

MUN:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

ARENT:

JOHNSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, so I'm not in a position to [inaudible]. It's a substantial investment, and it's
a new category, so we're putting a lot of money investing in this to make a
success.

Okay. Thank you.
Madame Chair, Herb Santos.
Herb?

Thank you. Herb Santos, for the record. | know when | drove by — | was down in
Vegas a coupie weeks ago and it sparked my interest, but can you walk me
through how you determine the amount of people that are going to be non-
Nevada residents that are going to use it? How do you come to that number?
Maybe | missed that. I'm not sure how that is determined.

Thank you, Madame Chair, through you to Commissioner Santos. I'd like to ask
Mr. Johnson to come back up. It's his study that determined the numbers, so
the city doesn’t play a direct role in that. I'll defer to Mr. Johnson.

Charlie Johnson of Johnson Consulting. It's actually simple, the methodology
that we use. It's very clear what the retail sales are in all of Clark County. We
have that data; we know that number from [inaudible] and a variety of other
places. We also know that Las Vegas has about 42M to 43M - visitors a year,
excuse me.

And so, we’re able to calculate what their spin on retail is and relate that to the
entire sales volume that happens in the county, and that happens to be 55
percent. So already, just general retail that happens in the greater Metro area is
greater than 50 percent or preponderance from out of town.

With that being the case, we then looked at the — we use that as a frame of
reference. Obviously, locals will attend this project, but it's our conclusion that
we're easily going to meet the standard retail model because of the special,
unique nature of this. So we used assumptions that allowed us to gauge over
and above what currently happens at the traditional retail level to capture what
this would be.

We felt certainly that it's going to be more than just traditional retail. So if you

look at the Mob Museum or other museums there which we interviewed {o
understand where their visitors come from, then we were able to calculate that.

16



STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

RASUL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

So, we helieve that’s actually a conservative number. That's the frame of
reference.

Madame Chairman?
Yes.

This is Bob Stoldal in Las Vegas. | think you remember | drive by this site nearly
every day. And | [inaudible}. | don’t want to say this [inaudible], but it's a site
truly waiting for development. The buildings there are not being improved.
[inaudible] ex-officio, but | would as somebody who's seen this site over the last
few years, seen what’s happening, | endorse this project. Thank you for your
indulgence.

Thank you, Commissioner Stoldal. Are there any other questions, comments or
queries by Commission members?

Madame Chair, this is Brian Krolicki. Just a quick observation and perhaps a
question to our Deputy Attorney General. You know, | anly had a few STAR
Bond events during my tenure, and yeah, it is an uncommon thing, and I'm
wondering if some of the statutes might have changed, but really, and with all
due respect to Mr. Johnson and others, no, the estimate of out-of-state versus
in-state visitors is an inexact science.

It's somewhat of an art form, but | accept, you know, what I've heard today.
But, it is what it is, you just, you know, really can’t go beyond there, so there is a
leap of faith being made by the Commission.

But 'm wondering in subsequent years, because we’ve had this conversation
about preponderance and what it means and, you know, how to affirm that or
stand behind it. Has anything been done to look at the possibility of a claw back
in case those numbers didn't hit the preponderance, if that could be
determined, but has there been any changes to the statutes in the past few
years? Do you understand my question about claw back?

For the record, Hannah Rasul, Senior Deputy Attorney General. In logking at the
statute that’s in front of me, it looks like the last change made to the statute
was in 2013, but as far as what the changes are or were, | am not certain
because | didn't look into that. As i indicated at the beginning, I'm sitting in for
Sarah Bradley who is your assigned Attorney General, so that wasn’t an issue or
a question she anticipated.

17



KROLICKI:

RASUL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And my intention isn’t to put you on the spot, and | apologize.
No, that’s fine.

Just in some of the economic development activities there are claw backs so,
you take the leap of faith, but there's, you know, trust and verify, and part of
the challenge of these statutes for the sales tax districts, you know, there is no
look back period, so there really is a leap of faith.

So, as long as we're comfortable and know that, | still find it, you know, less
quantitative than is comfortable for me, but if we have professionals standing
behind these numbers, and certainly our colleagues and fellow, folks in Las
Vegas believe this to be important in how they wish to use the statutes. You
know, | just hate to see any statute be abused in the future or other people
climbing on. You know, this should be used in a very measured way.

But if we think that this truly fits the hurdles, you know, subjective to these kind
of projects and folks on the ground are comfortable, and the professionals who
live and work in Las Vegas are comfortable, that satisfies me. But it is indeed a
grey area.

Thank you, Commissioner Krolicki. | appreciate your perspective and | think it's
an important one. Commissioner Delone called for the question so that is to
say then the question is whether this Commission has determined based on
findings of the study that a preponderance of the increase in the proceeds from
sales and use taxes remitted by retailers within the district that is being
proposed would be attributable to transactions with tourists who are not
residents of this state.

That's the question asking the Commissioners. If they have no further
questions, | would accept a motion.

So moved, Cindy Carano.
Thank you. Do | have a second?
Second.

All right, | have a motion and a second. Is there any discussion? Hearing none,
all those in favor signify by saying aye.

Aye.

i8



MARSHALL:

ARENT:

8ROHN:

Brand USA Update

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

DIAZ:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Any opposed? Thank you. Appreciate it. Passed unanimously, and we will
move on. Thank you very much. Appreciate it.

Thank you, Madame Liesutenant Gavernor. Thank you, Commission members.

Thank you, Madame Chair and Commission members.

Yes, and thank you for coming up to Carson City. It's a long trip. Okay, moving
on to Agenda Item F, Brand USA Updates.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. As many of you are aware, Brand USA’s
marketing arm, the US Travel Association, of which Travel Nevada is a board
member, and since 2013 we've been making a media buy with them in our
international markets to enhance our presence there and expand upon the
campaigns that are being executed by our representation in those markets.

I'm going to introduce Yennifer Diaz who is our Market Manager for Latin
American, Canada and Australia who will give you some insight into that
partnership.

For the record, Yennifer Diaz. Good afternoon, Lieutenant Governor Marshall,
members of the Commission. Thank you for being here. Over the past six years
Travel Nevada has partnered with Brand USA, and Travel Nevada’s partnership
with Brand USA has opened additional advertising opportunities that Travel
Nevada would not — which would not be able to do on their own or afford on
their own.

For fiscal year 2020, Travel Nevada will be investing $300,000 with Brand USA.
The funds will go towards 14 different Brand USA programs which adds to a
total value of close to $1.8M. Each program supports Travel Nevada's
overarching key initiatives which are drive international visitation, boost
partnership, create and convey value.

| believe you have a copy of all the programs within your packets. The first one
listed is the Inspiration Guide, and you should have — we passed around a copy
of the Inspiration Guide, what it locks like. It's a really nice inspiration magazine
that Brand USA puts together for the entire USA. It gets placed in US embassies
and Visa offices. It gets translated into nine different languages and it's
distributed in over 40 countries.

19



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

That is one big part of our partnership. This year, Lake Tahoe was part of the
cover which was a great boost for us. Experience Pages are — we’ll be adding
five new experience pages within the visittheusa.com website. Those pages will
highlight the Neon to Nature Road Trip, Rubies Route, Burner Byway, Great
Basin Byway and the ET Highway.

Then we’ll also be investing in the USA Discovery Program which is Travel
Nevada’s old page within the Visit the USA website. And then as always, we
partner with Brand USA on these missions and FAMs so that will be a continued
partnership that we do which generates additional leads and exposure for us.

Nine Media is an awareness campaign that we’ll be doing within Australia. And
it will be — it has a composure of print and call to action with Flight Centre and
Globus/Cosmos which are two great partners that are constantly promoting the
state and report back to us good bookings at the end of every partnership that
we do.

TravelZoo is a buyer to consumer multi-channel marketing platform. We'll be
featuring five road trips, Pony Express, Cowboy Courier, Free Range Art Highway
and the Reno/Tahoe Loop along with the Neon to Nature Experience. That
allowed us to partner with our suppliers who, you know, are hoteliers or
vendors, to promote their campaigns within the Canadian audience.

Travesigs is a luxury magazine within Mexico and it has a controlled circulation
generated for high income, high educated readers. The other one that sadly
we're going to have to reallocate is UK Thomas Cook Program. As you know,
that is no longer a go so we will be reallocating those funds to a different
program that is to be determined.

Then we have multiple Multichannel Programs within the countries of Brazil,
Canada, China, India, Mexico and Australia. Those are our top key markets to
the state and each program has an ability to create awareness, the ability for a
call to action. Since the reporting we get back from those programs is great, it
allows me to show you the next slide which is the return on investment that
Travel Nevada has had over the last three years.

When | first took over the program we were doing okay, but as of last fiscal

year, our revenue as grown and our bookings have grown, so we are really
excited to always be partnering with Brand USA.

20



CARPENTER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And with that said, | will turn it over to Allison, Allison Carpenter. She is my right
hand when it comes to all the programs and selecting what we should be doing,
and she'll give you a refresher of what Brand USA is about, and an update of the
new programs Brand USA is doing in order to continue promoting the USA.

Good afternoon, Lieutenant Governor Marshall and members of the
Commission. For the record, my name is Allison Carpenter. I'm the Senior
Manager of Partner Engagement at Brand USA based out here in the western US
and | work very closely with Brenda and Yennifer.

| appreciate taking a little bit of your time today just to refresh anybody who
previously knew about Brand USA or anybody who is new, what we do and how
we promote the United States and some of the things that we've got going on in
partnership with various states and Travel Nevada.

So, we work very much in partner programs and cooperative marketing, and so
with that, we have two main categories that we do, one being Brand USA
Originals, so those are the multi-channels and some of the market specific
programs that Yennifer was speaking about just momentarily, and Affinity
Programs, so those would be say Expedia or Trip Advisor where people are
already going there looking to buy travel and so we advertise there as well.

We have three main categories of our campaigns, one being a global consumer
campaign and so, we do that as Brand USA. We market all over the US, the five
territories and DC. And we do that globally.

And then we have a Travel Trade outreach, so we have representation in offices
representing in 13 markets that then cover 40 markets, and so with them, we're
able to further inspire and convert people to come to the US, and we work on
trade missions and health missions that Travel Nevada joins us with, and then
again, the Cooperative Marketing.

Those who aren’t familiar with Brand USA and how it's funded, we are not
funded by US taxpayers. We are funded by the Electronic System for Travel
Authorization. That's also known as the Visa Waiver Program. So anyone who
is coming into the United States from one of those particular countries, they fill
out a Visa electronically.

Part of those fees go to Homeland Security and part of them go into a pool of
funds for Brand USA. But we are alsc a nonprofit, and as part of our
public/private partnership, we actually have to raise contributions to be able to
unlock those dollars.

21



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The contribution that we get from Trave! Nevada, we then take that and match
that to unlock more funds from the pool of funds that are set aside for the
Asada and that allows us to continue to add value for your programs, research
and so forth.

This is just a little bit of the countries that we have representation. And this
represents about over 80 percent of the visitors to the United States.

In the past six years, our marketing efforts have been quite successful. We have
over 900 partners that we work with. We've had $21.88 in incremental
spending in the US, which in turn creates a lot of local taxes, Federal and state,
and we support about 52,000 jobs annually.

Our role is to inspire people to come to the US, but also to provide
opportunities for our partners that they wouldn’t necessarily have by
themselves, so we have a lot of economies of scale and then we work with the
partners to also convert those people who are inspired to come to the US down
to the conversion level.

Within our destination marketing, we have several different things that we do
from research, website development, product development, trade engagement
and consumer and trade messaging.

We have an approach called Many Voices, and it also ties into our Multiple
Screen Approach, and so this is when we’re doing our global campaigns for
consumer. This is the way that we approach our marketing, so we use
everything from a mobile device all the way up to giant screen to tell stories
about the unique places that people can go in the United States and those
experience had in those places. And we use a mix of voices. They could be
locals, they could be visitors, category experts or even the creative class.

One of the things that we’ve done is Hear the Music but also, we've worked on
giant screen films, and our latest one is coming out in February, tentatively
called Into America’s Wild.

We also have a consumer campaign called United Stories, and the concept
behind this is that with all social media and all the types of content that people
are consuming these days and they're consuming it at a vast quantities very
quickly, we came up with this concept to have mobile content creation labs and
they can create content at the speed of consumption.

22



MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

CARPENTER:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

CARPENTER:

MARSHALL:

CARPENTER:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We have several vehicles that go around the United States and they film unique
stories in different destinations. | would like to thank you for your time.

Thank you. That was very interesting. | appreciate it. Are there other questions
or thoughts from any of the Board members?

This is Pam Robinson.

Hi Pam.

Have any of those vehicles come to Nevada and documented any of our stories?
Not as of yet, but it's about a two-year program, and so we do roughly two
states a month, and | know Brenda and | have kicked around some ideas
[inaudible] working with the consumer team to craft what that idea will be for
Nevada.

Cool. Thank you.

This is Kate Marshall. | just want to say that we have a lot of vehicles like this in
Nevada, especially around Burning Man time, so you'd fit right in if you wanted
to come.

Yennifer just reminded me, my apologies, | didn’t bring this up earlier, but we’re
working on a video called Ask a Local, and it’s based in the Reno/Tahoe area. So
that’s something that we are doing here at no additional cost to Travel Nevada
to be able to tell unique stories about Reno, Nevada.

Great. Thank you.

Thank you.

Are there questions or thoughts, insights, from Board members? All right, thank
you very much for the presentation. | really appreciate it. Thank you.

Thank you for your time.

Nevada State Center for Tolerance

MARSHALL:

All right, moving on to Agenda Item G, we have a proposal to consider
supporting the Nevada State Center for Tolerance. Is there someone to make a
presentation up in Carson City on that?

23



HOSIER:

MARSHALL:

HOSIER:

MARSHALL:

HOSIER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Lieutenant Governor, Madame Chair, Dillon Hosier, for the record.
Thank you.

I'll give a brief reflection if that’s okay.

Thank you. Yes.

Good afternoon, my name is Dillon Hosier, and | serve as the Chief Advocacy
Officer at the Israeli American Civic Action Network, an immigrant rights
advocacy organization representing over 10,000 Israeli American immigrants
here in Nevada.

Today I'm here to speak on Agenda Item G, to urge support for a privately
funded feasibility study examining the viability of 3 proposed Nevada State
Center for Tolerance Holocaust and Genocide Educational Resource Center or a
museum.

First and foremost, | want to thank Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall for
bringing this item to the Commission. You have the appreciation of Nevada’s
Israeli American Jewish and Armenian communities for your care, concern and
attention ensuring that the state survivors of genocide are not forgotten and
that their stories may be preserved for all Nevadans for generations to come.
Also, | want to thank the Commission in advance for your consideration today of
this important measure.

To provide a bit of background on this item, there’s a coalition of the Armenian
community down south and the Israeli American community across the state.
The Israeli American community here in the state is about 10,000 and there are
about 20,000 Armenian Americans here in Nevada.

There was a real desire to preserve survivor history and to educate future
generations. And there was a recognition that there was no location here in the
state of Nevada to educate about genocide or the Holocaust. Most students
were traveling to Los Angeles or to Washington, DC for education.

And most importantly | think as we're all aware, there’s been a rise in
intolerance and anti-Semitism across the country, and there was a desire to
have a center here for education in the state of Nevada.

During this past legislative session, a strong bipartisan group of legislators
supported a bill that would have enabled Nevada’s Division of Museums to

24



Nevada Commission on Tourism | Septeamber 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Aftairs

conduct a feasibility study for a state Holocaust museum. Unfortunately, this
was a tough session and the bill didn’t make it out of the legislature, and this
was one that got stuck.

During session, we had a remarkable hearing that brought together and heard
stories of descendants of survivors of the Armenian Genocide, living survivors of
the Holocaust and even a Syrian refugee who in recent years saw the gassing of
his family in homes in Syria. All of them are Nevadans.

Although the bill to enable the Division of Museums to act failed to make it out
of the legislature, today this Commission can help take a step in the right
direction to help make this privately funded feasibility study possible.

In anticipation of the first question likely on your mind, if the feasibility study is
privately funded why does this coalition of organizations and support need the
state’s involvement?  Fundamentally, we want this to be a form of
public/private partnership.

Our primary concern is that if an educational resource center or museum is to
be built within the state, we want it to be built using the same professional
standards of the existing museum system and in consideration of the public, the
potential for visitors or tourism, and most importantly, with the state’s public
school students in mind.

In addition, and | hope most of you know this already, the state of Nevada has
an absolute treasure running the Division of Museums, your Administrator, Mr.
Peter Barton, has an extraordinary background with over 40 years of
experience. Just as one example, he designed and built the United States
Marine Corps Museum in Quantico among many other world class museums
across the country.

He understands how to get the job done, how to conduct a proper feasibility
study, how to estimate costs and expenses and how to build a roadmap to get
from concept to completion to benefit the public.

If this were a purely private enterprise, a museum may get build, but without
the involvement of the state, it would likely not educate and inform the
maximum number of Nevadans for the Coalition of Organizations. Education
and preservation of history is most important to us.

The Division of Museums has a mission. It is “to be recognized as the most
trusted stewards and engaging storytellers of Nevada's heritage for the state’s

25



MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

HOSIER:

STOLDAL:

HOSIER:

STOLDAL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

survivors of the Holocaust and Genocide.” We trust you to be stewards of that
history. Thank you.

Thank you for your presentation. | think this is a very important issue, and |
think any educational resource centers which can provide awareness and
educational opportunities for students and adults is important, especially since
there are multiple populations that have been impacted by attempted genocide.
Are there any questions or thoughts or inquiries from other Commission
members?

Bob Stoldal, Chairman of the State Museum Board. Just to start off, first of all, |
personally support this project. | have a couple of questions. The definition of a
feasibility study. A feasibility study can go off in several directions, and the idea
that Peter Barton would be involved is certainly a plus, but what is the presenter
— are the elements that would be in a feasibility study, at least at this point?

Dillon Hosier, for the record. QOur approach would be to work with Peter to
understand what those elements would be. He estimated during the legislative
session that the total cost would be about 5250,000. That's money that the
Coalition of Organizations is willing to provide to the state to raise.

Mr. Barton had indicated that he would set up an account with the Treasurer’s
Office to take those funds into the state and that those funds would be
administered through the Division of Museums. We would completely follow
Mr. Barton's lead in determining what the parameters of the feasibility study
would be.

That's a great start. As you outlined, Peter knows the system and certainly
knows Nevada as well. Ultimately, do you know at this point, does your
organization have a sense whether or not the goal would be to have this within
the state system or simply follow professional rules regarding the museum?

Dillon Hosier, for the record. My understanding is we would want this to be -
assuming the results of the feasibility study would bear out the need and the
market for a museum, we would absolutely want this to be a part of the
museum system established under NRS 381, but we would respect again the
outcome of the study if there would be some other cutcome, maybe a traveling
exhibit or some other thing that we could do through the Nevada State
Museum, we would accept that conclusion as well.

Great. Chairman, thank you so much for that. 1 appreciate the indulgence and
certainly the support the project. Thank you.

26



MARSHALL:

MUN:

HOSIER:

MUN:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

HOSIER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you. Other questions or comments by other Commission members?

Cynthia Mun, for the record. | just want to make sure I’'m understanding that
basically, the — your organization would pay $250,000 to the state to have this
study made or completed. Is that correct? And that’s kind of the succinct
summary of what we're trying to do here?

Dillon Hosier, for the record. Correct. So, we're providing the money; you're
providing the expertise.

Got it. Thank you.

Kate Wilson, for the record. Just for clarification and | had a chance to speak to
Peter about this at length, and | think Mr. Hosier has done a good job of
explaining that a lot of the answers will come from the feasibility study, so the
involvement of the state, the involvement of the Museums and History
Department would be completely dependent upon what came from the
feasibility study.

What became clear during the Legislative session is that again, with sort of the
lead of Peter Barton understanding what needs to be in that feasibility study is
the experience that they're looking for, but all of the funds would be provided
privately.

Thank you. Other questions?
Pam Robinson.
Yes.

But | didn’t hear, Commissioner Stoldal, are we to assume then after the
feasibility study if this goes forward that is becomes part of the state’s museum
system and built and operated by the state?

So, our understanding, and this was through discussions through the legislative
session, was that again, depending if the feasibility study showed, let's say in
optimum conditions, that there was a market, there was enough visitor
projections that it would warrant an actual museum, then yes, we would have it
be established through NRS 381. | can't remember the subsection that
establishes museums. It would be established there.

27



SANTOS:

RASUL:

SANTOS:

HOSIER:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

There was discussion about construction costs and operating costs, but again,
that would be a part of the feasibility study. There was some discussion about
that being again funded through the public, and as | think Administrator Barton
noted, a lot of the money from museums comes through donations and not
through necessarily through appropriations. We would look at that through the
feasibility study process.

This is just that first step to create a roadmap and kind of a vision of what that
would look like, to answer your question.

Herb Santos, for the record. Commission Mun asked you guys fund it and we
perform this feasibility study, so my question would be to the Attorney General.
Is that something that's allowable for the state to do a feasibility study that's
funded privately?

Hannah Rasul, Senior Deputy Attorney General, for the record. That is
something that | would have to look into or have to defer to Sarah, because it’s
not something that she told me we’d have to review or look into.

So, Herb Santos, for the record. This is so important. When we have black
marks in the history of the world, we have to make sure that our children and
their children and their children — it doesn’t get swept under the rug, they know
about it, so that mistakes and events can’t happen again.

| would just want to make sure that that's something that we can do as a
Commission using private funds to fund a feasibility study that we're doing. But
if that’s okay and we're allowed to do that by law, | support that 600 percent.

If | may, Commissioner, through the Chair, Dillon Hosier, for the record, NRS
381.0033 and NRS 381.0035 provide for the Division of Museums to take in
private money and to decide through the Board where that money is allocated.
So that's currently being done through the Stewart Indian School. It's a similar
process that was done there, and also through the Nevada State Railroad
Museum.

| just want to echo the last comment that the State Museum Board is allowed to
accept private money under NRS, and this would be the way that that money
would be brought into the system, so it is legal, and we’ve done it before.

This is Lieutenant Governor, Kate Marshall. | also want to make sure that the
Board understands that if the Board brings a motion, it would simply be to
express support of this process. We would not be legally authorizing the

28



SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

MARSHALL:

Agency Reports

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

process. That has to be done by the Attorney General and the Museum Board
and that kind of thing.

I do know that in addition to the Museum Board being able to take in private
monies, there are other areas of the state where we can take in private monies
to conduct studies as long as the outcome of the study, of course, is not
dictated by the private money, that they have to rely on the outcome whichever
way it goes, which | believe that Mr. Hosier has stated that however the study
comes out, they will abide by that.

Herb Santos, for the record. With your permission ¥'d like to make the motion.

If you could, there’s a motion kind of discussed on the last page of this proposal,
Herb, and | would love for you to make a motion.

Thank you. | would move that we express support of a privately funded
feasibility study concerning the establishment of a Nevada State Center for
Tolerance Holocaust and Genocide Historical Resource Center or museum which
reflects the experience and histories of Nevada’s communities which have
experienced genocide.,

Thank you. Do | have a second?
Second.

I have a motion and a second. Is there any discussion? All right, hearing none,
all those in favor, say aye.

Aye.

Any opposed? Motion carries. Thank you very much. 1 think this was a very
important motion, and | appreciate the Board’s action on this. Moving then to —
sorry, | lost my place here. Moving then to Agenda Item H, Agency Reports.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. Governor Sisolak recently appointed Stacey
Montooth the new Director of the Nevada Indian Commission and Stacey is well
known for her great work through the Reno/Sparks Indian Colony and we’re
very proud and happy to have her join the Department in this leadership
position. So, I'll introduce Stacey Montooth to meet the Commission and say a
few words.

29



MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Good afternoon. I'm a citizen of the Walker River Paiute Nation and the newly
appointed Executive Director of the Nevada Indian Commission. I'm thrilled to
be here. As most of you know, the Nevada Indian Commission and Nevada
Tourism are connected; we're linked.

When you look at the hierarchy, the org chart for the State of Nevada, the
Nevada Indian Commission relies heavily on tourism for infrastructure, for
helping from budgeting, just even to IT. We're happy and thrilled with that
assistance, very, very gratefu! for that.

And then, of course, with the rollout of the Stewart Indian School Cultural
Center and Museum it makes our connection to tourism even more meaningful.

| appreciate Ms. Brenda allowing me to come and meet you all in person today.
It's extremely comforting to see so many familiar faces. Commissioner, you've
always been very supportive of all the Reno/Sparks Indian Colony efforts,
Commissioner Carano, and we really appreciate that.

I have to have a shout out to my fellow Greenway alum back here, Ms. Jane
Moon, again, great to see familiar faces and | stand ready for any questions you
might have for me.

Thank you. Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall. How are you?

| apologize, I've been in this room twice, and | forget to look to my right.

No worries.

Wanderful to see you.

Yeah, you too. | wanted first to welcome you. I'm very honored that you would
choose to become the Executive Director of the Indian Commission. Can | ask
you one question? Do you know when the Stewart Cultural Center will open? Is
it going to be open this fall?

It will be open in December, so let’s say this winter.

Oh, in December, okay.

| supposed everyone knows with construction projects, there’s always a little bit

of room for delays. Our installations are scheduled to start very beginning of
November, so we'll be open for certain for at least a week in December,

30



MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MONTOOTH:

CARANO:

MONTOOTH:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

considering that a soft open with the holidays and whatnot, and of course, who
knows what the Nevada winter is going to present to us as far as traveling and
hamperance there.

But our alumni are very excited that we will have a really big celebration in the
spring. It’s actually, you know, consistent with our traditions, big celebration in
the spring.

That’s wonderful. You should know that I've had people from other states
basically emailing me and asking me about when the center will be open, so
what you are doing, the news is spreading far. Thank you.

If | may, | appreciate that recognition, but | am 28 days into the job. The former
Director, Ms. Sherry Rupert, is the one who deserves the accolades. [ just get to
come in and smile for the camera and cut the ribbon. All the heavy lifting has
already been done.

And | also should mention that again, our partnership, our work with Nevada
Tourism is huge from Guy Clifton, Bethany and of course, Brenda, they're all
helping us with the rollout. You're absolutely right. There is no other place on
the planet that is going to have an authentic experience like the Stewart Indian
School Cultural Center and Museum. Thank you.

Thank you. Other questions or queries from the Board?

Hi, Cindy Carano, for the record, and | just want to welcome you. You do have
awfully big shoes to fill, but | am looking forward to getting to know you a little
bit better and congratulations and welcome to the team. Maybe during that
experience, we can play basketball and roll the ball, the roll/pass.

Absolutely.

| mean mayhe | can get some brothers out there to play.

Now should we assume that the snickers in the room mean that everybody
understands that that was a strategy by my ancestors when they played
basketball at the Stewart gym? Not everybody understands that that technique

was actually even used against former Governor Sandoval, right?

Right. Exactly. He played.

31



MONTOOTH:

CARANO:

MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Again, thank you for all your support you’ve shown not just to the Reno/Sparks
Indian Colony, but all of our Native communities.

I love it. Thank you. | went to the Father's Day Pow Wow, that was awesome.
Great, | look forward to seeing you next year.

Thank you. Any other comments? Thank you. Thank you, again, and thank you
for honoring us by taking that position.

My pleasure.
Brenda, did you want to continue with the Agency Reports?

I will. For the record, Brenda Nebesky. H2.2 is our Quarterly Staff Update. |
don’t like to just go through the report. | have each of the Department
Directors present if there are any questions related to it, we're happy to answer
those.

I agree. That sounds good.

If not, | do want to just publicly appreciate how much work is represented in
each quarter that is done by staff, and | do ask that the report only reflects
deliverables. This doesn’t include ongoing work, so | just want to say thank you.

Thank you.

Iltem H2.3, the Budget Update, which is in the back of your packets. This is
essentially a snapshot of a year over year spending in each of our budget
categories for the Division of Tourism. As you can see, we're tracking fairly
normally in each.

Maybe the only under spending is in we’re a little over in out of state travel. |
think that reflects the fact that we have some open positions, one of them being
an International Market Manager.

We also have some underspending in the training category. | think that also
reflects the fact that we are, you know, missing some people and, you know, we
promised to get back up to speed with, especially supervisory training in that
category. Are there any questions related to the budget?

All right, hearing none, go ahead.

32



NEBESKY:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

NEBESKY:

EAST:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, I'll just continue then. Okay, Item H2.4 which is we have Shari Bombard
our Rural Programs Manager, who is going to discuss an error in the grant
awards from last fiscal.

Shari Bombard, Rural Programs Manager, for the record. Previously, when |
submitted the grant recommendations, everything is correct, every amount that
was allocated to each organization, all of that was correct, but at the very end,
the total amount awarded was incorrect.

The spreadsheet had an error within one of the cells, one of the calculating
errors within the spreadsheet, so | need to update that amount with a different
amount. What happened was the amount that was awarded to the Reno/Tahoe
territory was excluded within that formula.

Tt doesn’t really affect anything other than second cycle will get a little less,
which is fine. Those applications are due on Friday, and | just checked and we
have 393,000 right now along with about 20 open applications, so we really
should still be just fine, no problems with that so do you have any questions
about any of that?

Again, | apologize. it was completely my — that was definitely a mistake on my
end, and it will not happen again. | was mortified as you can imagine. So, is
there any questions?

Questions? Mistakes happen.

Yeah. Thank you.

Any questions? All right. Thank you, Shari. | think you're doing a great job.
Thank you very much.

Thank you, Shari. Brenda Nebesky, for the record. The next item is the
Governor’s Global Tourism Summit Update, and we’re having the Governor’s
Conference in Las Vegas this year at the Plaza downtown, and here to tell you
some details is our Conference Planner, Tiffany East.

Good afternoon, Madame Chair and Commissioners. For the record, my name
is Tiffany East, and I'm the Conference Planner for the Governor's Global
Tourism Summit. And as Brenda mentioned, we will be at the Plaza November
12" through 14" for our conference.

33



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I'm going to give you a couple of highlights, but | first want to thank our
Planning Committee, members from the RSCVA, the LVCVA, the staff here. It's
been a really nice combination of brainstorming and reaching out, and so | think
we've got a really fun agenda planned for you.

Highlights for this include our Meet and Greet, and | just got off the phone
literally with Ferguson’s downtown. It's the old motel down in downtown and
they've got a really fun evening planned for us with entertainment, food and
beverages. We'll be one of their first private engagements, so | think that's
going to be kind of a neat opportunity for us and to showcase some of the
resurgence of downtown.

Our Keynote Speaker will lead off our session on Tuesday morning, and that’s
Andy Schuon, and he's CEO and Founder of SPKR Inc. He’s a media veteran, and
he’s been in lots of roles including Pandora, MTV and was one of the youngest
DJs in LA radio history.

He will discuss music's role in shaping the character of our national and regional
destinations. And then we have futurist speaker, author and recognized
augmented reality, virtual reality and spatial computing thought leader, Cathy
Hackl. She’s going to talk about travel transformation, how AR and Al will help
shape or reshape travel and tourism.

We've got some sessions on developing new districts with Zappos and the
Jacobs Entertainment Group from the Neon Line here in Reno. Commission Phil
DeLone and Commissioner Steve Hill will speak to us about things going on in
their communities and at their places, the ever-popular sales and media
marketplace where people learn and connect with each other and bring
opportunities to — find opportunities to bring people to Nevada.

Our Salute to Industries Dinner, we're actually introducing a new award
program this year which will be kind of fun. Brenda and | have been working on
it, an Industry Partner Award for International Receptors and Tour Operators.
And we have a special performance by a group called iLuminate which will be
really fun and exciting, so please plan to be there.

Roger Dahl from the US Travel Association will give us an update on Tuesday —
or Thursday morning, I'm sorry. We'll have our Media Marketplace. Rafael
from the LVCVA will give us an IPW preview, and then we’ll have a panel of
some of our international offices for lunch. And then - well at lunch, not for
lunch. Sorry, we're not eating the panel.

34



MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

EAST:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And then Learning Labs in the afternoon about state parks, social media, the
value of media trade missions and perfecting your sales pitch.

We're going to wrap up the conference with a really fun panel, the new sports
capital of the world, and Lisa Motley from the LVCVA is going to moderate that
with Brian Killingsworth from the Vegas Golden Knights, Mark Badain from the
Raiders, Peter Dropick from UFC, Desiree Reed Francois from the UNLV, and
Paul Chamberlain from Hyper X Esports.

So, is there anything I've missed? Really, really fun. They've asked for
networking in our surveys from past conferences. Delegates have asked for
more networking opportunities, more information that they can take back and
implement into their daily practice, and just more trends kind of information, so
| think we're giving them a combination of all of that, and it’'s been fun to plan.
Any questions for me?

No.

Pam Robinson. | don’t have a question, but | just, having been involved in a
number of these, | just want to do a shout out to Tiffany and her team and
Travel Nevada and your team because there is a tremendous amount of work
that goes into this, and they're really worthwhile conferences, and | hope all of
the Commissioners have a chance to attend at least part of them because it is a
very worthwhile conference.

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Tiffany. | encourage all the Commissioners to attend. Moving on,
next item is a marketing campaign update. This sprung from some of the
comments and advice in the last Full Commission Meeting in June, and after
reviewing the meeting Minutes and speaking with the Lieutenant Governor,
we’ve identified a couple of areas in which we can improve the way we inform
the Commission.

What we've done is we've asked the Marketing Subcommitiee to meet
quarterly in advance of each Full Commission Meeting, and they’'re going to help
us craft a — well two things, they'll report and make recommendations to the
Full Commission as they have been, but then also we’re going to ask them to
help us identify a measurements’ strategy, a measurement framewark by which
we can report to you instead of trying to distill all of the data that Travel Nevada
gets, and it's a lot.

35



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We're very data informed. Every decision we make we reference some data
point, but we can’t possibly have the Commission become all about those
statistics. We're going to develop measures by which we can kind of identify
what our thought process was because | think that’s the other missing piece is,
we aren’t presenting the process by which we reach those recommendations
and conclusions that you’'re seeing.

Related to both creative development and media buying, in December we hope
to come to you with that new formula for how we're going to present that
moving forward, and | hope there’s more clarity and a better understanding of
the decision making.

Thank you. Are there any questions from any of the Board members? All right,
go on Brenda.

Okay. The next item is an update on the Department Director search. We
reposted the job description the first week of September. It will be posted
through October 6™, The difference this time from the first time in May when it
was posted is because | also posted it on some travel and tourism related
industry sites, and then I've also let US Travel Association and the National
Council of State Tourism Directors know that we’re looking for a Director. |
really hope that we’ll field some really qualified candidates this round.

The HR team is going to help us, you know, filter the submissions for minimum
qualifications, and then they will forward those applicants on to the search
subcommittee as happened last time. The timing on all of that moving forward
is still up to you, Lieutenant Governor, but we’ll be in touch about that, and I'll
touch base with HR about at what point we can start forwarding the resumes.
Thank you.

I'll update you each individually, all the members of the Search Committee.
Thank you.

Lieutenant Governor?

Yes.

36



RCBINSON:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

NEBESKY:

WILSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Pam Robinson. 1 want to clarify that the process is going to be a little bit
different, that the subcommittee will not look at all of the second round and
make the cuts or not cuts and then recommend. As we did last time.

Yeah, so this is Kate Wilson, for the record. | think the only thing, for the sake of
expediency, and | think that the Board has discussed this as well. | think the
Lieutenant Governor is looking for more on like 3 recommendation basis than a
traditional interview basis.

So we will see what comes through the traditional applications, but since we are
- we were able to put the funds forward to do more specific targeting to
tourism specific industries that we're hopeful that there will be people who
come to the top, but yes, depending on the number of resumes, they will be
sent, as Brenda said, to the subcommittees for their recommendations to the
Lieutenant Governor.

And assuming that that process is sufficient, then the Lieutenant Governor
would go off of those recommendations.

Again, the people on the Commission, they will be consistently updated with
what resumes have been received by Brenda, and if they want to recommend
someone they should come forward and do so.

Bob Stoldal, for the record.
Yes.

I just want to walk through that one more time. All of the resumes are going to
be coming into the Lieutenant Governor’s Office. All of the resumes will be sent
out to each member of the Commission, and then the Commission members
will simply send the Lieutenant Governor their thoughts?

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. Commissioner Stoldal, the process will be
Agency HR is going to accept all of the submitted resumes and disqualify some
based on minimum qualifications within the job description. Those who meet it
will then be forwarded to the Lieutenant Governor, or if we identify a process
by which they go directly to the search subcommittee, that’s fine too, but they
won't go directly to the entire Commission, correct?

Yeah, Kate Wilson, for the record. It was our intention to continue to use the
subcommittee as sort of a conduit and unless there were concerns from the

37



STOLDAL:

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

Nevada Cammission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

subcommittee, to elevate it to the full committee, the resumes would just go
through the subcommittee to the Lieutenant Governor with recommendations.

So then the Full Commission will not have a vote on the top three
recommended candidates?

Unless there is a call from the subcommittee for that. Again, having ali of you
gone through the last process, you know, there was a need for that full
conversation because the subcommittee did not feel comfortable with making
that decision.

It is our hope that since we are reaching out to the industry specific sectors, that
the subcommittee will feel more comfortable making direct recommendations
to Lieutenant Governor and for the sake of trying to find someone quickly to fill
this position. For the sake of time, also think that that is useful.

I know that the last meeting we had the Attorney General’s Office speak about
the process and technically it can be a recommendation from word of mouth, it
can be someone in your network, so there is a lot of flexibility for what that
recommendation process is, and again, for the sake of expediency we did feel
that going through the subcommittee would be quicker and we can sort of defer
to them on whether or not it needs to be elevated to the Full Commission.

Stoldal, again, for the record. | don’t remember the members of the
subcommittee, but | would want to make sure that any member of the
subcommittee or anybody that has under NRS a recommendation or a vote on
that, | believe the Indian Commission as well as the Arts Council, that they are
either on the subcommittee or they are added to the subcommittee or they
receive the applications. They may very well be on the subcommittee. Thank
you.

Yeah, Kate Wilson.

Kate Wilson, for the record. Yes, absolutely, and | will triple check with our DAG
on that. Again, they have to have the opportunity to make a recommendation
to the Lieutenant Governor, but you know, as it stands currently, you are the
only member of the ex-officio board who was on the subcommittee.

I can certainly reach out to the other two to ask if they would be interested in
doing so. But | will clarify with her on the specifics of recommendations.

Thank you.

38



NEBESKY:

MANFREDI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you. For the record, Brenda Nebesky, moving on to the next item. We do
like to keep you apprised of what’s going on in the entire department, and so
here today is Tony Manfredi, the Director of the Nevada Arts Council.

Good afternoon. For the record, Tony Manfredi, Lieutenant Governor Marshall,
Commissioners, it's my great pleasure to present to you today, queuing up my
presentation here very quickly. All right, again, thank you for the opportunity to
present to you this afternoon and for your service to our great state.

Arts culture and creativity are significant components that define our rich
heritage. As we look back, we can easily find many instances where our creative
spirit is permeating throughout the people, places and traditions of so many of
our citizens. And yet this spirit is often misunderstood and passibly taken for
granted.

As we look to the opportunities of today and towards the future of tomorrow,
we must acknowledge that creativity is essential and plays a critical role in
sustaining and improving the quality of life, economic development and
education of Nevada’s communities.

I'm going to provide you with some insight about the critical value and critical
need that arts and culture play, how they contribute to our great state and how
the Nevada Arts Council does drive some of these outcomes through our
partnerships and activities.

As | mentioned, too often arts and culture are placed maybe off to the side,
viewed as secondary, nonessential, maybe even as an elective. However, arts
are vital, and they provide some really important ways that improve the quality
of life throughout our Nevada communities, and they must be fully integrated
into our everyday lives.

| ask you to take a look at those four attributes you see on the screen there,
creativity, innovation, prosperity and skills. How many of those do you look for
in yourself, your employees and your business? The arts make more things
possible from better education to greater health outcomes to more civically
engaged citizens. | firmly believe that there isn’t a challenge we face that the
arts can’t help solve,

And many Nevadans understand this too. [t's evident from a 2018 public
opinion survey that was conducted by Americans for the Arts, some numbers
here, 76 percent of Nevada adults attended an arts or cultural event during the

39



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

previous year. 73 percent agree that the arts are a form of pure pleasure. 73
percent also agree that the arts help them understand other cultures better.
And 70 percent of Nevadans believe the arts make them a more creative
person.

You've heard a lot of things today about the idea of creativity and people
looking at fostering creativity and what it does for our state. The arts are a
tremendous driver of creativity. Nevadans believe that the arts have a positive
social impact for diverse audiences. 75 percent of Nevadans believe the arts
help students perform better academically, 62 percent believe that they help
the healing and healthcare experience. And 49 percent agree that the arts are
helpful to military personnel as they transition back to civilian life.

Creativity is seen to boost professional success in Nevada. 70 percent say that
the more creative and innovative they are in their job, either individually or as
part of a team, the more successful they are in the workplace. 61 percent say
that their job requires them to be creative and come up with ideas that are
either new or unigue.

And the arts are good for tourism and economy. This is something certainly
near and dear to this Commission. 72 percent of Nevadans believe that the arts
industry is good for the economy and supports jobs. This 61 percent is a victim
of copy and paste on this slide, so | apologize. The real number is 73 percent of
the arts have a social impact improving the gquality and livability in their
community. And 85 percent of adults are in agreement that the arts attract
travelers and are good for tourism.

And speaking of tourism, the arts drive tourism. Another study by Americans
for the Arts highlights that 54.2 percent of non-loca! event attendees said their
primary purpose for coming into the region was to attend a particular arts and
cultural event.

You can also see that audience spending beyond the ticket price is significant for
a community. And think about that amongst yourselves. You may go to an
event, you may go out to dinner hefore the event, you may have babysitters,
you may have — you might go out and buy a new outfit. So, there's a wake that
happens with these particular events.

A major focus of state arts strategies is strengthening tourism. Many travelers
pick vacation spots not only for their natural resources, but for their cultural
offerings. Visitors will plan or extend their stay in a particular area because of
the area’s unique food, history, art or music.

40



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This can be described as cultural tourism. It's a key component of economic
growth, offering local communities of diversified and sustainable means for
creating jobs and attracting revenue. And there’s a mutually beneficial
relationship between culture and tourism.

Cultural creates a distinctiveness, to separate itself out from a really crowded
marketplace, and at the same time tourism provides an important means for
enhancing culture and creating income which can support and strengthen
cultural heritage, cultural production and creativity.

The creative sector can support and energize ongoing economic development in
both urban and rural places as highlighted on this slide. And most importantly is
the last element on this slide, the arts faster community vitality, a desirable
quality of life and destination feel that is attractive to residents, businesses and
visitors.

You may be thinking that this all sounds great, but how does this really relate
and translate to the economy in our state? | mean it’s like this. The US Bureau
of Economic Analysis cites that seven billion dollars - arts and culture
production contributes seven billion dollars to our state, 4.7 percent of our
economy and it contributes to over 41,000 jobs. That's real money, that's real
jobs, and it's a huge impact for our state.

Another slide here highlights the art businesses and the employment from them
in each of our counties. That's 4,942 arts businesses employing 28,551 people.
The difference between this slide and the previous slide is that this is really
looking at specific arts services, art schools, services, design, publishing, film,
radio, TV, performing arts and the like.

We've touched on the value and the significant contributions that arts and
creativity provide to Nevada, so how is the state addressing that? Well one way
is through the Nevada Arts Council. We are authorized in state statute
celebrating 52 years of serving all of our urban and rural areas of Nevada.
We're one of 56 state or regional arts agencies in the country, all of whom are
insured. Every community receives the benefit of the arts.

How are we funded? We are part of Tourism and Cultural Affairs, which is why
we're here. We receive funding from the state through Tourism and Cultural
Affairs and also through the National Endowment for the Arts. This is a really
great state and Federal partnership. The only way we can receive our funds

41



Mevada Commission an Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

from the National Endowment for the Arts is to be a state arts agency and for
the state to match those funds.

For 2020, we have a full budget of $2.7M. 5$710,000 of that comes from the
National Endowment. We write a grant for that. One other point of note of the
value and importance of the upcoming census, we hope to see those numbers
increase because that would mean more money coming to the state based on
those census numbers. So, the census is an extremely important activity that
and if we can find ways to contribute to that, please do.

So, what do we do with all that money and how do we do it? We do it through
six unigue program areas. Artist Services is the first I'll briefly talk about. As it
states, it really talks about and directly impacts artists. We honor and showcase
the work of our artists in the state. We provide resources for career
development to them, and we help the public understand the vital role that
artists play in providing again a creative workforce.

Some of our programs of note in this area, The Nevada Touring Exhibition. It's
one of — brings professionally curated exhibits that we do, and we actually bring
these in to rural and urban communities throughout the state. Sometimes it's
the only professionally curated exhibit that a particular region or entity might
get. It's a really great opportunity to extend that.

We actually also through our grant funding did a really cool thing last year
where we did a grant where we provided hanging systems to some communities
that didn’t have this, and ultimately what that did was allowed our work to go in
there and be displayed and hung correctly, but it allowed for the community
then to bring in student artwork and other community art work and infuse some
of these spaces full-time and full year-round.

We also — one of the other areas is our distinguished fellowship program which
highlights the best of our Nevada artists.

Our Arts Learning Area is really about arts education, arts integration and arts
for social development. From the education side, this is the arts class, the
painting class, a performance class, and often times again, it's really getting
people to understand the work that goes into those classes and it is about
specific art disciplines, but there’s also arts integration and use of the arts as
tools to strengthen teaching and learning in non-art subjects and arts for social
development, the use of arts as tools to promote social development for health
and healing.

42



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I'll step back here just quick. | want to talk about a roster teaching artist from a
steam workshop that one of our roster artists conducted at Veterans Memorial
STEM Academy in Reno. And there is those words, STEM and STEAM and what
the Arts Council is really trying to drive is the STEAM side of that, adding arts
into STEM curriculum.

But there was a unit that was discussed on the properties of light, and some of
the terms that were discussed were translucent, transparent and opaque. The
Arts Learning Project was a hands-on experience to help explain these terms by
having students create a nightlight.

We got a testimonial from one of the teachers in the class that said a lot of my
kids came back after taking their nightlights home. And many were excited to
tell me where they placed them in their house. Many of my kids don’t have
bedrooms and sleep in 2 living room or a kitchen alcove. The nightlight gave
them ownership of a piece of art within their space, and it did that by also
explaining those terms that they didn't realize were being explained to them.

This is one of the really cool programs that we work on. Community Arts
Development engages with nonprofit arts and cultural organization, public
institutions and our tribal governments providing grants and programs and
services aimed to support and solve community problems.

Business of Art graphic that you see there was a program that we conducted in
November of 2018 for performing artists in Las Vegas where we actually talked
to them about how to organize and manage their careers and businesses.

And our latest initiative, the Nevada Basin to Range Exchange is the picture you
see above. We had 50 arts leaders across the state convene in Tonopah where
we talked about the challenges between rural and urban initiatives and looked
at creating partnerships in that. We actually were able to grant out 13 projects
that were a combination from rural and urban communities which again really -
and we've convening again in April once again to keep this program moving
along.

Folklife is really meant to discover and document folk arts and folk ways that are
resident in Nevada, explore intersections of art in transition, and we share these
results. Pretty interesting. | suspect if | were to ask you all about what your
thoughts of folklife are, most of you would probably go to native cultures and
indigenous cultures, which is correct, but we’re also looking at it in the way that
it impacts all of us because again, we all have heritage, tradition, cultures.

43



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Wwe all celebrate food in certain ways. We all celebrate holidays in certain ways,
and it really is who we are as people, and in many ways and we talked about
earlier about how arts and culture really bring together and help us understand
cultures. This is exactly what this is about, and again, you think about looking at
all of us here today. We might have our suits on or a nice outfit, but again, how
we look in our workplace isn’t how we celebrate some of our customs and
traditions.

So, you see, Tristin Ike and his western Shoshone pow wow dancing. We see
Aisha Sandoval from Clark County as a runner and Elsa as an Indian folks dancer.
We see Andrew Fusco and he has a band, playing drums in his band, but he also
is a Highland bagpiper. Savannah Monah, Portuguese, you see her work here,
but she also is the Portuguese FestiQueen and excuse me on this one, Sheldene
Halamalau. She is a Hawaiian Hula dancer.

So, again, we see how we might appear at one point in time and how we
actually celebrate our cultures. This is folklife. We’re asking all of you to find
your folklife as well and tell about it through out #nvfolkfaninitiative. You can
visit our website. I'm happy to give you more information on how you can take
partin that.

Grants Program area, most people know the Arts Council through our grants
program. It provides a significant commitment by the state and the Federal
government to support the creation of art and access to it for our citizens. NAC
grants support efforts of our nonprofit community organizations, public
institutions and individual artists to make cultural activities and experiences
widely available to those who live in and visit Nevada.

We do this by offering competitive and non-competitive grants, and these
grants are actually really strenuously reviewed for artistic excellence, the
community impact and merit that they will have on our state and also the
project planning and management that goes into them.

Public initiatives and arts, public info and arts initiatives is the last area that we
focus on. This is really a part of our Nevada Arts Council Board, Governor
appointed board. These are special projects that we might be working and
things that support the agency’s goals and mission.

And lastly, the impact that we have. So 2018, grants and program activity
results, 139 zip codes reached, 50 cities, all 16 counties. We granted out 309
grant awards at a total of $1,020,000. All of our — a good portion of our grants
actually require a match, either in-kind or cash. That amount was $66M, over

44



MARSHALL:

MANFREDI:

MARSHALL:

MANFREDI:

Upcoming Meetings

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

$66M in cash and in-kind, and you might be asking how much of that was cash?
Over $61M was infused into our state from our grant work,

We engaged with over 1,300,000 people and of those, over 376,000 were pre-K
through 12 students served, all with a budget for 2018 of $2.4M and 13 staff
members. It's a testament to our staff and the work that we're doing, and
certainly the partnerships and collaborations that we have, including that with
the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs that we’re able to do all of that
work. Thank you for the opportunity to present about the Arts Council.

Thank you very much. | really appreciate that presentation, especially the ask at
the end. Okay, he doesn’t want any questions. He darted away. [laughter]

Don't be nervous. You're with friends.

Sorry. This is Tony Manfredi, for the record. 1 am happy to answer questions. |
apologize for that. I'm trying to be sensitive to everyone’s time.

All right, any questions? | know, that’s true, right, we still have six minutes, so
any questions from anyone? All right, go ahead. Okay. Thank you again.

Thank you.

MARSHALL: Okay. | think we are now Agenda Item |. Thank you, Brenda, for the agency
reports and thank you, Mr. Manfredi, for the discussion about the Nevada Arts
Council. Upcoming meeting, our next Full Commission Meeting is December
11, 2019, at 1:00 p.m. | know we're entering into the holidays, guys, so if you
could mark that on your calendars now.

Commissioner Comments

MARSHALL: Item J, Commissioner Comments?

SANTOS: Herh Santos, for the record.

MARSHALL: Yes.

SANTOS: I think if | had had a little bit more information under H2.7 for the Director

search | would have been able to comment upon that, but I'm just a little
concerned. | just reviewed NRS 231.210, and I'll read that rule.

45



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

It says in talking about the Director, “must be appointed by the Governor from a
list of three persons submitted to the Governor by the Lieutenant Governor
from recommendations made to the Lieutenant Governor by the a) voting
members of the Commission on Tourism, b) Chair of the Board of Museums and
History, c) Chair of the Nevada Indian Commission, and d) Chair of the Board of
the Nevada Arts Council.

| think this rule requires recommendations clearly by the voting members of the
Commission on Tourism which seems to me is something that's done as a group
versus as individuals, whether it's three names, ten names that goes to the
Lieutenant Governor and then the Lieutenant Governor looks at that list, and
then submits the three names to the Governor which | think is very clear from
the way the statute is written.

And if } understand the process that’s going to happen, it seems that it’s taking
the consensus of the Commissioners to provide recommendations. If we don’t
see the list of the folks that have applied, it's very possible that the names that
are submitted to you, Lieutenant Governor, have no input from either of these
bodies if all we're doing is if we know someone that wants to apply and making
that type of recommendation, and | think that goes away from the spirit of that
law.

I can’t say the intent because | didn’t have the opportunity to be able to review
the {egislative history of that statute as I'm sitting up here. But to me, the spirit
of that rule means that the Commission and the other members that are listed
in that statute meet together and make recommendations of names that we
have vetted in addition to the Committee, so that we are getting the best
person to fulfill this very important job for the state of Nevada.

From what | heard earlier, | just think that that's sort of taking it out. | mean
there could be a situation where one Commissioner sends three names to you
and those are the only three names that are even — I mean | would have no idea
who those people are or even had a chance to evaluate that person’s
qualifications.

I think the reason why we have the consensus of our Commission is so that we
can use our own experiences, our own expertise, so that we can vet and get the
best possible person for that position. And that’s my concern, and | would have
brought that up at H2.7 if we had had some materials that sort of said here’s the
way it looks like we’re going, but we didn’t have that, so that’s why I’'m utilizing
the Commissioners Comments.

46



MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism [ September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

{ hope that’s not an abuse of the Commissioner Comment section. | just wanted
to say that for the record.

This is Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall. First off, thank you so much for
bringing up that concern. | think it's an important one. Why don’t we do this?
We had previously had the Deputy AG come and present to the Commission
what their interpretation of that particular section you're referring to is. That
allowed us to form a subcommittee and go through the process we went
through last time.

What | will do is we will have the DAG write up their understanding of the law
for the rest of the Commission and we will go from there, okay? So, | will make
sure that the DAG gets a transcript of your concerns and ask them to produce a
written response so that we can make sure that we're on the — we’re doing
things correctly with the intent and the spirit of the law, while still being able to
move this along. Does that sound good to you?

Herb Santos, for the record. Yes, thank you very much.
Okay, no worries. Any other —yeah, go on.

Kate Wilson, for the record. The only thing that | will say, Commissioner Santos,
is that in the Minutes from the previous meeting when we had the interviews,
the DAG who was present did note that there’s nothing when you read the
specifics on what a recommendation is. Is it a person? Do you have to give a
resume, does that person have to interview? Does it have to come from the
collective committee?

And she said that as long as it is from a voting member of the committee it can
be personally to Lieutenant Governor. Again, whether or not the Board decides
that that is a process you want to move forward with is completely up to you as
an advisory board, but specifically from the DAG’s perspective, that it can be the
individual within the voting member block can make an individual
recommendation that is not confirmed by the Full Commission.

That's on Page 104 of the Minutes, just for clarification. Again, as a Board you
can decide that that is not the way that you want to proceed, but via the DAG,
she said that there was enough flexibility in the statute that it could be an
individual recommendation as opposed to a recommendation that the Board
had voted on or has been privy to.

Madame Chairman?

47



MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes.

Bob Stoldal, for the record. | will have to tell you that | respectfully disagree
with the DAG at that meeting, and | think the Full Commission was there. Was
asked that question and gave — and she wasn't the regular staff member, the
regular DAG. Sarah Bradley wasn’t there, and she gave her sort of flexible, sort
of "off the cuff” informal opinian.

If the Lieutenant Governor is suggesting that we are now going to ask for a
formal opinion from the Attorney General, I'm not sure how long that process
will be. But | have to agree with Commissioner Santos. | can’t imagine that
each of the Commissioners are going to send in unilaterally their own
recommendations and whether it's one, three or ten, and then the Lieutenant
Governor is going to go through 20 or 30 resumes and pick three.

Clearly, that's not what the statute recommends. The question | have is are we
asking the AG for a formal opinion, and if we are, what is the question we are
going to be asking the Attorney General?

Okay. This is Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall. Thank you, Mr. Stoldal for
that. | think that again, you are bringing up an important point. | will say to you
that we as a Commission right now, we have not agenized a request and
discussion to make a request to the DAG for a formal written opinion.

What | have offered, if you guys are comfortable with that is that, is | will go to
the DAG and as the Lieutenant Governor will request a formal written opinion
on this statute as to what the process is that is required by that statute. And I'm
asking you if you are comfortable with that.

Commissioner Santos, I'd like to hear what your thoughts are on the question.

Herb Santos, for the record. I'm just formulating my thought before | just move
out with response. | think at any time that we can get additional guidance from
the Attorney General's Office, | think that's important, but | think that this is
something that perhaps should be on our next Agenda or our next meeting so
that we can all have a proper time to be able to provide our thoughts as to what
NRS 231.210 means to us as Commissioners and get an understanding with the
Attorney General if we're all on the same page or if we're not. That would be
my response.

48



MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay. | think it would be helpful if | ask the Deputy Attorney General for a
formal opinion, and | will try to make sure that there's enough time to have that
opinion by the next Board meeting, and we will agendize that opinion if | can get
it. 1 don’t know how much time it takes them to produce a formal opinion, but |
will try to do that.

In other words, you are being heard. Geez, | can’t get a smile out of the guy.
Herb! [laughter] I'm trying to, you know, geez, okay, you're a hard customer.
All right. Any other Commissioner comments?

Madame Chairman, this is Pam Robinson. 1 think there's a difference between
an official Attorney General opinion and having our DAG give us a review of the
law, but that’s not the right term.

Correct.

Okay, because the AGOs are usually pretty — | mean they take a long time to get.
Well | will —what I'm trying to do is see if | can get something in writing.

Perfect.

I don’t know if | can —if I have to go through the formal AGQ process. | have to
figure that out, but I'm trying to get something in writing, okay.

Good.

That will provide the Commission a legal opinion they can rely on. In other
words, something that's been researched.

Thank you.
Okay, any other Commissioner comments?

I just wanted to note, so | received this in the mail, and | wasn’t sure what this
was for.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. That’'s our Road Trip Guide which supplements
all of our information on our website related to our 10 branded road trips. And
you know, it's kind of one of our core messages, both creatively and through
content, but that is our print piece that kind of supports that. We're in the
process of revising it with a little better information, a little fresh take on that.

49



MUN:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

Public Comment

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

That goes to many of our trade shows and industry events and is just a great
takeaway in regard to Nevada Open Road.

Got it. 1thought it was beautiful. 1 liked it. But | wasn't sure what it was for.
Thank you.

And hey, she's taking a road trip, right, as soon as we're done here. All right,
any other Commissioner comments?

Bob Stoldal, for the record, and maybe this is one that I'll need a follow-up off
the record, but with all the members of the Commission on Tourism from
around the state representing different aspects under the revised statute, |
wonder why our video conference system is so archaic. And I'm not sure — |
don’t mean this is Brenda's fault.

But I’d like to know what the process would be to be able to see some of the
slide shows, the PowerPoints when we're off in Tonopah or someplace else and
we just don’t — and the rest of the world seems to be able to do that.

Personally, I've been using Zoom for the last year. It's a great video conference
tool. I'm wondering whether or not we are required to use the one that
connects Carson City with the offices down here or whether Tourism can in fact
use another video conference system. Thank you.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. Commiissioner Stoldal, we did just replace the
entire AV system here in the chambers and in our Las Vegas Office. One of the
things you trade when you have a Cloud based conference call that includes
video or screen sharing, is quality. And there’s quite often a delay.

With the system we recently installed and are now using, there isn’t that. It's
extremely high quality. So, it all costs money and it’s all something we can put
on the wish list, but there is no perfect solution to sharing, publicly sharing,
everything that's presented to anyone in any location. That's not an easy

solution.

Other comments? All right.

Public comment in Carson?

50



CARANO:

MARSHALL:

PIERROTT:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

Adjournment

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, yes, we do have one.
Okay.

Good afternoon and thank you for your time today. For the record, my name is
Daniel Pierrott with Argentum Partners on behalf of our client, the Las Vegas
Sands. Lieutenant Governor Marshall and fellow Commissioners, Las Vegas
Sands stands firmly in support of item G, the preliminary study for establishing a
Holocaust resource or museum.

We believe that it is of great value for not only our current generation and for
future generations to come. This initiative will ensure that our state and its
guests will never forget the events that our predecessors were forced to
endure. Whether it be a resource center or a museum, creating such an
establishment under the Nevada Commission on Tourism banner is an excellent

step towards achieving this goal.

We would just like to thank you for your motion of support and hope to see this
come to fruition. Thank you. [Addendum A]

Thank you. Any other comments in Carson City?

Seeing none.

Thank you. Comments on the phone? All right, comments in Vegas? No. Okay.
Thank you very much for those comments. | appreciated them. Moving on to
the last item, did anyone want to make a motion to adjourn, Herb? [laughter)
Herb Santos, for the record. | would move to adjourn.

All right, is there a second?

Second.

Second. | have a motion and a second. Any discussion? All right, hearing none,
all those in favor signify by saying aye.

51



Mevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

GROUP: Aye.

MARSHALL: Any opposed? Motion carries, Thank you, guys. Thank you very much for being
here. I'll see you soon.

The meeting adjourned at 3:10 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant

Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism

52



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 24, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

ADDENDUM A

Testimony provided to NCOT

Goad afterncon and thank you for your time today. For the record, my name is Daniel Pierrott, with
Argentum Partners on behalf of our client, the Las Vegas Sands. Lieutenant Governor Marshall and
fellow Commissioners, the Las Vegas Sands stands firmly in support of ITEM G, the preliminary study for
establishing a Holocaust resource center or museum. We believe that it is of great value for not only our
current generation, but for future generations to come. This initiative will ensure that our state and its
guests never forget the events that our predecessors were forced to endure. Whether it be a resource
center or museum, creating such an establishment under the Nevada Commission on Tourism banner is
an excellent step towards achieving this goal. We would just like to thank you for your motion of
support and hope to see this come into fruition.

Contact Information:

Workplace: Argenturn Partners

Name / Title: Daniel Pierrott, Public Affairs Coordinator
Tel: 775-857-5685

Email: Daniel@argentumnyv.com

53






Rural Marketing Grants
TravelNevada.biz

NE‘ fA






WOOD VAOVAINTIIAVHL

AT
YAVAIN:

vw\f(&v.

+

9jepdn
Zig epenapn|oAeLL

SY|V43dV TVHNLIND ANV WSIHNOL 4O INJW1HVd3d




MO VAVAINTIIAVAEL

‘YAVAIN'
N/

*-zIQ"ependN|oARLL Mmau ay) Supnposuj

"JWWNS WSLINOJ |BQO|S S,40UJBA0L) 9Y] 21043 39M Y]} PaYdune| dUS MU Y|
¥q Jauped
Jno yum Jawwns jsed siyl uedaq ziq epeAsp|aAel] 01 salepdn ‘spasu pue Sjuem

|[eluswedap ssnosip 01 Ajjeusaiul Suil@aw pue 3)s 3yl Jo Jipne ue Supjel JAYY
‘a1epdn ue 1o} anp sem adualiadxae Jash 3y}

‘pa1epdn Ajsnonuijuod sem mouy| 0} papasau siauped uojewdojul Jusuiad IIYM e

‘siauyed 10} 921n0S3aJ auUOo-ul-||e 3q 0} pausisap Si Ziq epenap|aAe.l]

INoqy



"uoljewolul
Ajawn SulAe|dsip ‘@1e304 S13pPI|S 01044

*S1Y3} 03

HSI9NoL

SWANTYIVAIN

**SIU3} WO

ugisopay asedoaWoH




‘WI0Y PPEADL|AARI}GISNOAIUITT L2 SSNOLIUIC]] SHI01] D) Juas aq
UE2 $u0NsIEnG e 3200031 20 PpeAI NI9ARL L O A00] mew 243 Acfua nok odoy o

130¥d SHINLHYd AQLSAANE MIN 3HL OL IHOTTIN

oSN JO 9Se9 I0J SuojIng JUI[ yoIng)



[LOLHEENT

asawog

YOYA3N 3L0408d IM MOK

ue|d J1301es3¥5 AND

101N NDAN
woyazede yepesan

UI'EDEASNOD == m: .—.¢_.__3

XUPWIOY BPRASINIIARL
auyizeSepy epeAaN

Y0 BPEAIN|IARIL 535L3]3Y SS24d "R SMAN
Lopana gels
di-reperaniaael] TUULUNG WSHNO ) PO S S0LIDA00

WISLIND ] U UD|SSILEIDT) BPRABN

3P EPEABN|BABY dn 0
PrepeAaN(aARIL punay jeiny BS5Y °2 50104d 50307 WSIIN0 ] JO UBISING BPEASN
i'epeAaN|IABIL dnudis 1anajsman sdugaaw Jgngd spoday g yirieasay ST
WO BREABIN{RARI L sisanbay eipayw JBpUB|E) JURAT SIUBIO) |einynD 'g wsunoy jo wswuedag

4013 SITHLIK LI3NN0I SIMIA3 B SN SHINIH¥d 04 S30HN0SH 34V 31 DHM

S140434 T BVaNIYD () S1KvED @ $135SY 3 0901 (3

fiNIN HIYVIS

*'$924n0saJ Juejiodwii 10} dojis-auo e ag 0}
pausisap suoijdo jo AyalieA e yim nusaw umopdoag



THITHO AVIVNIDO Y

w2y puchy "Arpuy

ozo2 ‘o5 aunl wrd § 0¥ o) wef gy
£4 Wiy hepuany ST NG UTTETRER) #40F b 8
Uad tuonegidy I i B aoN “depuopy Lsd T b
1 benayoy pay A pua BT 920244 s wstnd ¢) Gy tieany unrmy pacy sjur1n wsuno] o) Sunegay siaforg spuetn By ieiy jemy
anly vl 142 it Banayey) oy spalely 1382 0282 %43 e

SHYHDOUd LNYHD

SINYHD HSTHNOL 0L JHIIYIIY Euﬂ:ﬁ_ (RY SLHYE3 THILIXHYH T804
B i S

g -y ey gty - ks g i m

SINYHI HSIOL ——— ==

SO0 NOLLYHI4SY AN F JAIHRV

SJURISIUSLING ], INOQY

"SIy} 03 'S|U} WO

sjueldo | a3ed pajepdn




.
r
~ 4 ¢ A v UTaTs
[ | L 10 MO | y =Svjjayiele
S1U2oA] ) WISIINO| M— *dn dod 0iul 19y]0 Oam @ @
n i 4 A 1 < , U 4 . .
- - I x - + - _.- r
gUl [IB 9dS NOA [I1UnN JO1 sUDo0| 21 NOA 1eUM MmOU
p _— = by £ ~enrr 1 Ad
oD 10U TYSILL NOA 95N 2230 MoIAIQAD (| U L3y
121130 AEM SI nUaWwd aul = JIAISAS DULL O $1S
w ety ~ 3 L ] ? o A
£ QT iy A = " A - Y T "
ll cgul|esaqade 2100 “Uoludilao ALLL L "gJe Sa.1n12id 2U1 DL
SAIIIRI1IR o0 ABM SO0 3eul 1221 oul Luc 1ledy
\ - A 4 A 9 = &

dwniyed 1012341Q WslINO] 493119qpPaT 919Uy —

juoileziuesio ayl pue uolty dn sydey ayl aAo| { jiLl I |




SdINLa¥d AdLSNONI

iNOA YueyJ,









KEY INITIATIVES

EVOLVE THE BRAND

NEVADA DIVISION OF TOURISM
FIRST FISCAL QUARTER (July - September, 2019), FY20 REPORT

Research-Driven Integrated Marketing

¢ Statewide tourism indicators for the first quarter were released and show growth across

many metrics.
2018 2019 Difference

Room Tax Collections | $24,629,235 $25,090,956 1.9%
Visitor Volume | 56,519,020 56,464,612 (0.1%)

Occupancy Level 83.4% T 83.0% (0.4)F“ B
“Room Nights Occupled 58,286,185 | 58,252,038 (0.1%)

Room Inventory* | 192,326 194,374 1.1%

Gross Gaming Revenue $11,812,539,278 $11,907,302,744 0.8%
_Convention Attendance | 6,824,815 | 6,888,216 0.9% =

Statewide Airport Volume T 53,749,043 55,186,681 2.7%

* Numbers are based on rolling 12 month year-over-year comparisons

* Reom Inventory counts represent the number of hotel/motel rooms available for daily rent as
of June 30, 2019.

Tourism Economics reported estimates of the economic impacts of tourism in Nevada:
visitors spent $40.8 billion in Nevada 2018, translating into $65.5 billion in business sales
when secondary impacts are considered. This spending of $40.8 billion is an increase of
about 2.7% from 2017.

Tourism Economics also produced estimates of international visitation to Nevada for
2018. Overall, international visitation {o Nevada increased by 1.7% in 2018.

Paid Advertising/Creative Development

After wrapping production in Q1, Travel Nevada completed the first phase of our new
creative campaign. In September, Travel Nevada, in collaboration with our creative
agency BVK, traveled to northern Nevada in continuation of our new creative campaign.
Locations included Lake Tahoe, the Nevada State Railroad Museum, Sand Mountain,
Ward Charcoal Ovens, mountain bike trails in Ely, and Great Basin National Park.
Deliverable assets are being finalized and will be integrated into the current :30 broadcast
spot and digital ads while further developing our still photo library.

QOur media buy via the Fahlgren Mortine agency began to launch with new creative more
widely in September, with partners including Adara, Buzzfeed, Culture Trip, Expedia,
Hulu, InPowered, Priceline, TravelZoo, Trip Advisor, and Travel + Leisure. Highlights of
other collaborative efforts are included as buliet points in this report.



In collaboration with Museums & History, print, digital, and branded content pieces were
produced for advertising in niche coin publications for the Mint 150 celebralion and the
sale of the commemorative coin.

Digital Development

Sessions to the Travel Nevada website increased by nearly 62% from the same quarter
last year, reaching nearly 573,000 sessions.

Other Key Performance indicalors from the website saw strong increases as well,
Referrals to partner sites increased by about 33%, adding to favorites increased by about
61%, and requests of the visitors guide increased nearly 560% over the same quarter last
year.

Naoble Studios continued site improvement efforts. In Q1 FY20, YoY overall site sessions
were up 68% page views up 48% and organic sessions up 251%, year over year. Staff
continues to work with Noble on content refinements, resulting in a 119% track to goal in
partner referral for the calendar year. Growth is projected to stall through re-platforming
efforts this Fiscal year.

Travel Nevada successfully completed a changeover to Hubspot in an effort to advance
our CRM efforts. in conjunction with Noble Studios, the new system allows Nevada to
better target engaged audiences, personalizing a seamless customer journey via email
outreach and digital interactions.

Editorial themes this quarter were State and National Parks {July), Weird Nevada
{August), and Road Trips {September.) These are some of our most engaging editorial
themes, with Weird Nevada a perpetual annual frontrunner. From July to September 2279,
the adventure blog with the most pageviews is “35 Ways To Get Down in Some
#WeirdNevada” with 9,200 pageviews and an average time spent on page at 4.02—
exceeding industry engagement standards.

Other top quarterly performers were “26 Razzle-Dazzle NV Ghost Town Finds, and the
Specs You'll Need to Get You There" (7,858/5:02), 6 Ways To Get Into Nevada's Biggest
Pocket of Parks (7,218/3:57).

Travel Nevada continued owned podcast efforts by releasing two podcast series on the
Cowboy Corridor Road Trip and Burner Byway Road Trip. In total, there are 5 episodes
now available on SoundCloud or iTunes. We conducted the Rubies Route podcast
production in August, which will be released in October or November.

Public Relations

The “Storm Area 51" event created a perfect opportunity to promote the Extraterrestrial
Highway and other “odd” Nevada attractions. PR staff brainstormed with the Marketing
team to develop an integrated approach {o increasing positive coverage of Nevada during
this time, while also diffusing visitation to other areas outside of Rachel. The Marketing
team took on the lion's share of promotional efforts through the website, social media,
collateral, and community outreach, while PR staff worked with local communities and the
Nellis Air Force Base to draft safe and careful messaging around promoting the region
leading up to and during the event. PR staff conducted interviews with numerous national
media that resulted in positive articles in newspapers and websites including: The Wall
Street Journal, Reuters, NBC News, CNN, Forbes, as well as multiple Nevada news
sites.



PR staff distributed nation-wide press releases on the Area 51-ish campaign, as well as
on fall events things to do in Nevada. Additionally, the quarterly Industry Partners e-
newsletter was distributed along with ongoing communications promoting the Nevada
Governor's Global Tourism Summit.

KOH radio (780 AM) has crealed a bi-weekly travel segment on its Weekend Magazine
show. Staff records 10-minute segments about road trips, destinations, and activities in
Nevada. The segments for FY20 Q1 were: Berlin-lchthyosaur State Park; Farmers’
Markets; Hawthorne; Virginia City; Dark Skies/stargazing; and the Extraterrestrial
Highway.

Key media placements as a direct result of pitching and/or press trips:
o Men's Journal, July: 50 Weekend Trip Ideas for an Unforgettable Summer

Vacation
Mentions: Reno, North Lake Tahoe, Reno Rodeo, Artown, Tahoe Rim Trail,
The ROW
o L.A. Times, July: Nevada's Star Train takes visitors into the dark on a stargazing
adventure
Mentions: Nevada Northern Railway, Great Basin National Park, Ely
o Travel + Leisure, July: This Train Takes You to the Middle of Nowhere to
Stargaze...
Mentions: Nevada Northern Railway, Great Basin National Park, Ely, and
refers to the LA Times story listed above.
o New York Times, July: By Air, Land and Sea, Travel is Electrifying
Mentions: Eleciric Highway, Hwy. 95, Tesla Gigafactory, Travel Nevada,
Hawthorne
o L.A. Times, August: In Reno, Burning Man's vibe burns bright all year long
Mentions: Reno, Morris Burner Hostel, Playa Art Park, Black Rock Desert,
The Generator, Art Spot, Junkee Clothing Exchange
o Travel Channel — Legendary Locations, August: The Mizpah Hotel
Mentions: Tonopah, The Mizpah
o Endless Vacation, August: Viva Nevada
Mentions: Red Rock Canyon, Lost City Museum, Boulder City, Flightlinez
Bootleg Canyon, Valley of Fire
o Walf Street Journal, September: What's Really Going on at Area 51...
Mentions: Area 51, Travel Nevada, Rachel, ET Highway
o KOLO-TV, Sept: Travel Nevada promotes tourism with Area 51 Scavenger Hunt
Mentions: Travel Nevada, branded scavenger hunt, ET Highway

Social Media

In partnership with The Great Reno Balloon Race, Travel Nevada hosted the
#RencBalloon19 Photo Contest. Folks were invited to submit photos taken during this
year's Great Reno Balloon Race (via a landing page and Instagram hashtag) and then
vote for three prize winners from 30 finalists. The promaotion resulted in 7,692 website
views, 837 photo entries, 835 Travel Nevada e-newsletter signups, and Travel Nevada's
three social media posts announcing the winning photos reached over 68,000 people
between Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram.

Travel Nevada's influencer marketing campaign with Travel Mindset continued from Q1
and wrapped mid-September 2019. Five influencers experienced five different road trips

3



throughout Nevada, and their social media posts/photos/blogs were amplified by a
network of 20 travel influencers. Overall, this Travel Mindset campaign reached 9.2
million people with 187 million total social media impressions at an average cost per
engagement of $0.18.

Travel Nevada has launched an extensive Facebook ads campaign with AdParlor, meant
to drive e-newsletter and visitors guide sign-ups through social media while also
promoting the agency’s 10 branded road trips and overall Nevada awareness. Eight e-
newsletter lead generation ads began running on Facebook in mid-September 2019,
along with 16 visitors guide lead generation ads. Four Facebook Canvas ads are running
as well, featuring deep dives into The Death Drive, the Loneliest Road in America, and
Lake Tahoe Loop road trips. Lastly, a Facebook Carousel ad features all 10 road trips.
While it is early in the running of all these ads, many of them are already performing way
above industry average — for example, the Link Click-Through Rate (LCTR) for Travel
Nevada's Canvas ads is 5.4%, compared to an average LCTR of 0.9% for the travel and
hospitality industry. More Canvas and Carousel ads will be developed through FY20,
featuring all of the agency’s branded road trips.

Travel Nevada's “dark™ social efferts (ads targeting and cnly visible to mare specific
audiences) continued to keep our target markets plied with high-quality and high-
performing content, as well as to reach audiences in certain drive-in markets likely to take
an action based on their interests in an activity. Over the course of 1,291 ads within 706
campaigns, Travel Nevada content delivered nearly 6 million impressions, with a result
rate nearly three times that of the industry average (3.67% versus 0.90%} and cost per
click sitting a full $0.19 below the industry average.

Most Popular Content Themes:

Outdoor Rec (State Parks, Dark Skies, Hard Adventure)
Weird Nevada

Area 51

Special Project Opportunity: Area 51

In July Travel Nevada learned of an internet joke about a gathering in the communities
outside Area 51 to which, eventually, over 2 million “attendees” had indicated their faux
interest in visiting rural Nevada. We saw an opportunity to harness the buzz, both to drive
traffic to our website, as well as to fulfill our mission of enticing prospective travelers to
visit rural Nevada.

Through a combination of re-tooled SEO strategies, email marketing, and targeted social
media ads, we saw 93,797 pageviews of our Area 51 page (our top-visited page last
quarter, accounting for nearly 11% of all site traffic), which was retooled to drive
thousands more windfall pageviews to other alien-adjacent content on our site, especially
Road Trips and individual POls and activities.

In August, staff traveled the effected routes and contacted nearly 30 business owners
within a radius of Area 51—from Tonopah to Pioche to Amargosa Valley—to see if they
wanted to be a part of a campaign idea: the Area 51 Intergalactic Scavenger Hunt, in
which online-based and physical brochures would encourage visitors to go to “51 areas”
to discover other rural Nevada towns, interesting attractions, and make purchases at
dozens of businesses in the region; 100% of businesses contacted joined the campaign.

Thousands of people did end up "storming” not a military base but the events at the Alien
Research Center and Little A'Le'Inn; meanwhile the businesses involved in our campaign
reported many otherwise unexpected patrons showing up to their establishments fo
complete the “tasks” in the Hunt, make purchases, and carry the momentum of the

4



festivities, originally relegated to three locations (Hiko, Rachel, and Las Vegas) to a
number of other rural Nevada towns.

In-state Familiarization and Press Trips

Travel Nevada hosted a small group of travel influencers Sept. 9-12 in southern Nevada.
The trip was themed “Ghosts, Legends, and Legacies” and focused on experiences
accessible to visitors coming into Las Vegas and wanting to venture off the Strip. We
strategically targeted markets that are important in terms of potential visitors, but also that
have limited media outlets, making micro-influencers from those markets that much more
visible. The itinerary included Fremont Street and the downtown Las Vegas art scene;
Boulder City and the flightlines there; Nelson; the Pioneer Saloon and off-roading in
Goodsprings. The trip ended at Spring Mountain Ranch State Park, to introduce a state
park as an alternative to the adjacent — and overcrowded — Red Rock Canyon. The
results are continuing to be tallied, but as of Oct. 14, the influencers had posted 26 posts,
garnered nearly 300,000 impressions, and driven 180 visits to our website.

Through our Latin American representatives and in partnership with Volaris Airlines, the
team worked with Food and Travel magazine (Mexico) on a foodie tour of Reno-Tahoe in
September. The itinerary included Reno, Incline Village, Genoa, Carson Valley, and
Fallon.

In September, staff hosted a writer on assignment from American Wild magazine to write
a story about “what you can do in 3-5 days in the Reno area.” Staff connected him with
local experts to mountain bike in Carson Valley and the Flume Trail; street cycle in
Carson City and Reno; tour the Nevada State Railroad Museum; and tour the new Bently
Heritage Estate Distillery and Alibi Ale Works.

In August, the team hosted a journalist from BikeRumor.com, the world's top online
cycling tech resource. The journalist was on assignment for the *“Where to Ride” series on
the site. The website has a global audience reaching 3 million monthly page views, with
primary audiences in the U.S., the UK, Canada, and Germany. TN connected him with
the White Pine Tourism Bureau and local cycling experts there. The story posted online
in October and can be viewed here: https://bikerumor.com/2019/10/03/where-to-ride-
finding-mountain-bike-gold-in-ely-nevadas-secret-singletrack/

Domestic Sales Qutreach

August 26-29 Travel Nevada attended Connect Tour in Louisville, KY. This business to
business appointment-based show focused on domestic tour operators currently selling
US tours. Over 250 operators attended - a mix of tour operators, meeting planners and
agents. Travel Nevada added over 100 new agencies to our database.

Internatignal Sales Outreach

July 2-5 Travel Nevada joined the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority for the
United Kingdom Sales Mission. Travel Nevada’s participation in this sales mission
provided an apportunity to meet, network with and educate key travel pariners in
Liverpool and the greater London area on everything the state of Nevada has to offer to
the UK visitor. The mission included trave! agent workshop training events in Liverpool
and London, a product manager breakfast with one-on-one appointments, additional
sales agent training sessions as well as attendance at the Visit USA Independence Day
Ball event. The United Kingdom is the largest overseas market for Nevada with over 30
non-stop flights to the state from the UK weekly, primarily British Airways, Virgin Atlantic,
and Norwegian.



July 7-12 Travel Nevada participated in the Brand USA sales mission to Japan and South
Korea. This 5-day mission took place in Tokyo and Seoul. The mission provided 2 days
of business to business appointments and 2 VIP dinners with key tour operators and
agents. We were also able to meet with our new international market representatives and
talk about the sales and marketing plan for 2020.

August 15-23 Travel Nevada teamed up with the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors
Authority on a sales mission to New Zealand and Australia. In addition to being part of
the mission, Travel Nevada had one on one training sessions with top producers such as
Adventure World, Ski Max Holidays, Intrepid Travel, and Flight Centre. The mission
opened new co-op marketing campaign opportunities and elevated Nevada's trade
efforts.

September 3-6 Travel Nevada organized a Mexico mission which reinforced Nevada's
presence in the marketplace directly with top tour operators, travel agents, airlines, and
trade media. We hosted trade shows at the headquarter offices of two main online travel
agencies (Best Day and Price Travel) in Cancun. Afierwards, we continued the sales
mission in Mexico City, where we hosted two main events and ane VIP dinner with the
main travel associations & airline partners. The mission had nine Nevada partners in
attendance. In total partners had the opportunity to network with close to 100 travel
industry associates.

September 9-13 Travel Nevada participated as an exhibitor at the inaugural Brand USA
Travel Week Europe 2019 conference in London, England. The event saw a total of 468
attendees participating with 179 buyers from 154 travel companies across 20 countries in
Europe. Travel Nevada, the LVCVA and the Reno/Tahoe Territory participated, along
with 97 other US suppliers. The show primarily consisted of 20-minute business to
business (B2B) one-on-one appointments with product managers and key decision
makers. Attending Brand USA Travel Week allowed Travel Nevada to have high quality
meetings with numerous travel professionals from all over Europe, strengthening our
relationships with existing partners and giving us the ability to present Nevada to
countries and regions that we usually don't have an opportunity to meet with.

September 17-19 Travel Nevada participated in the Active America China Receptive
Event in San Gabriel, CA. This appointment-based show brought the major receptive
operators working with China, Japan, South Korea, India and Southeast Asian
consumers and agencies together to meet DMO's to develop new product. Travel
Nevada highlighted the 10 road trip itineraries and iniroduced new product to this market.
Over the 3-day event, 27 one-on-one meetings were conducted. In addition, we had the
opportunity to do group sales calls and presentations to the 5 largest Los Angeles area
operators.

September 23-27 Travel Nevada traveled to India to join Brand USA on their India sales
mission. Visiting Chennai, Mumbai and New Delhi, one-on-one business meetings were
conducted and the new road trip guide was introduced to the market. Over 600 top selling
tour operators and agents were in attendance and Travel Nevada was able to meet 386
agents and operators. In addition, it was an opportunity to officially meet and train our
new representative firm in India - Buzz Travel Marketing



ENHANCE PARTNERSHIPS

2m Cycle 2020 Rural Marketing Grant Applications opened July 28" and closed
September 27, They will be awarded at the Commission on Tourism meeting
December 11th, 2019.

Staff participated in Reno Air Service Council meetings, collaborating on new air service
efforts in several new markets.

Industry Partner Portal

As the new website is developed, the goal will be to educate users about Nevada, and
push them to partner websites. Therefore, usage of the portal is no longer an effective
measurement of success. As of September, efforts to push traffic to rural partners was at
a 119% track to goal for the calendar year.

ADVOCATE FOR THE INDUSTRY

Staff attended the ESTO conference in Austin, TX. The conference is an opportunity to
bring state and local tourism offices together to attend Educational Seminars for Tourism
Organizations in a conference setting including breakouts and networking opportunities.

ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS

In July, Travel Nevada partnered with Nevada State Parks for our State and National
Parks editorial theme. Together, we created a giveaway hosted on Travel Nevada's
owned social channels, asking followers to answer: “If you could be any Nevada State
Park, which one would you be and why?" Answering this question entered them to win a
free annual Nevada State Parks pass. As part of the giveaway, the top posts were as
follows:

o Walker State Recreation Area: 1,400 likes/25 comments/15,215 reached

o Instagram hosted giveaway with NSP: 652 likes/110 comments(entries)/12,788

reached

In August, Travel Nevada partnered with the Town of Tonopah to create a community-
hosted giveaway to align with our Weird Nevada editorial theme, centered around The
Clown Motel. Along with Hot Springs and Ghost Towns, Weird Nevada is continually, one
of our top performing editorial themes. The promo asked our Instagram audience to spell
out what #fWeirdNevada atiractions are their favorite.

o As part of the giveaway, we saw 652 likes, 72 comments, a reach of 10,331. We
also required entrants to follow @TonopahNevada, @ClownMotelPhotos and
@TonopahBrew. The Mizpah Hotel was the third accommodation searched for
on TravelNevada.com during the month of August.

Travel Nevada attended Territory Meetings in the following towns: Stateline, Tonopah,
Carson City, Crystal Bay, Kingston, Las Vegas, Hawthorne, and Wells.

Travel Nevada traveled to and conducted outreach and meetings with various
businesses, non-profit organizations, and convention and visitors authorities in the
following towns: Virginia City, Austin, Kingston, Tonopah, Hawthorne, Luning, Rachel,
Hiko, Caliente, Pioche, Crystal, Beatty, Rhyolite, Amargosa, Goldfield, Battle Mountain,
Elko, Tuscarora, Jarbidge, Wells, Lamoille, and Jiggs.

7



5. RUN AN EFFECTIVE BUSINESS

Nevada Magazine

Nevada Magazine published the September/October 2019 and November/December
2019 issues. Stories included in these issues were: Tahoe Pyramid Trail progress; Candy
Dance turns 100; Ash Meadows National Wildlife Refuge; Caliente; Wells; International
Car Forest; St. Thomas; our annual Great Nevada Picture Hunt; Las Vegas Chocolate
Tour; The Ong; Guru Road; The Star Hotel; Gans-Nelson Prize Fight; Nevada Nugget
Casinos; Red Rock Hikes; and the last two installments of our Ghost Town series.

The Events & Shows magazine is distributed throughout Las Vegas, including McCarran
Airport, as well as in Northern and rural Nevada, featured all the latest shows and a
calendar of events covering the entire state.

Over a year ago, Nevada Magazine was asked to furnish photos for the new Northern
Nevada Veterans Home that was being built in Reno. Word was put out on our Nevada
Photographers Facebook Page and had an overwhelming response of 750 donated
images. The staff at the Home picked their favorites and had them printed and hung
throughout the facility. They invited magazine staff to an open house along with our
photographers and presented staff with a commemorative plaque. Photographers were
able to dedicate the photos to family and friends who were veterans and the results were
truly overwhelming. More than 200 photos are hanging throughout the facility with brass
plaques with the name of the photographer and their dedication. The complete story will
be in the January/February 2020 issue.

The 42" Annual Great Nevada Picture Hunt was featured in the September/October
issue with some of the most amazing photos ever submitted. The Silver State
Scavenger Hunt wrapped up with the announcement of the Northern and Southern
Nevada winners of the Land Rover Packages.

Staff is in the planning stages of a book based on the Ghost Town Odyssey series that
will include maps, and historic photos as well as condensed versions of the twelve siories
that ran in the magazine. The book will be on sale in 2020.

80% of Nevada Magazine archives have been digitized and available to online
subscribers. There has been a very positive response to them used for research and
simply reading.

The Nevada Historical Society will be using some archived stories in their quarterly
magagzine which will give the magazine exposure to a new audience interested in Nevada
history. The magazine has also been donated to the Made In Nevada project for the
College of Business at UNR. The magazines will be included in bags that will be taken
on international outreach trips o places around the globe, including Poland, Honduras,
Australia, and China, among many others.



FY20 vs FY19 vs FY18 vs FY17 Tourism Category Expenditure Update Through November 27

Category | Description [ 20 FY19 FY18 FY17
' CATO2 Out-of-State Travel | ) Thru11/26/18| Thru11/27/17| Thru 11/27/16
Legislative Authority Amount: $47,494.00 $48,907.00( $48,907.00 $49,406.00
Actual Expenditures: $19,366.73 $19,396.82 $23,511.77]  $11,168.48
Remalning Available Funds:  $28,127.27 $29,510.18 $25395.23|  $38,237.52
% Spent YTD:| 41% 40% 48%| 23%
CATO03 In-State Travel { P i _
Legislative Authority Amount:| §3S,059.ooﬁ_ $38,635.00 $38,725.00 $43,496.00
Actual Expenditures: $11,566.99 $13,512.40 $6,891.03 $12,358.03
| Remaining Available Funds: 526,522.01 $25,122.60_ 531,833.97 $31,137.97
' % Spent YTD:! 30% 35% 18% 28%
CAT 30 Training _ B _ )
| Legislative Authority Amount: $5,977.00 $6,531.00 $6,531.00 $7,086.00
Actual Expenditures: $3,395.00] $2,828.60} $4,781.61 $945.23
Remaining Avallable Funds:| $2,582.00 53,702.40_ _ $1,749.39 $6,140.77
% Spent YTD: 57% 43% 73% 13%
CAT 31 Promotion & Advertising {08 |
- Legislative Authority Amount:  $15,371,450.00 $15,114,876.00| $15,201,987.00] $11,309,367.00
Actual Expenditures:  $2,995,808.04| 52,799,617.03| $2,419,238.88| $1,850,249.55
Remaining Available Funds: $12,375,541.96_ 512,315,258.97_ _ $12,782,748.12_ $9,459,117.45
% Spent YTD: 19% 19% 16% 16%







THE HEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TOURISH AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS

Steve Sisolak | Governor CARSON CITY OFFICE SOUTHERN NEVADA OFFICE
Kate Marshall | Lieutenant Governor 401 North Carson Street 4000 S. Eastern Ave., Ste 240
Brenda Nebesky | Acting Director Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 89119

2020 NCOT QUARTERLY MEETING DATES

March 18, 2020 Wednesday 1:00 pm
June 24, 2020 Wednesday 1:.00 pm
September 23, 2020 Wednesday 1:00 pm
December 9, 2020 Wednesday 1.00 pm

NVCULTURE.ORG












Melissa Janine Evans

702.902.0639 * melissajanineevans@yahoo.com

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS:

¢ 15 years of tourism and economic development expertise, which included event management, grant
administration, redevelopment for both urban and rural cormmunities, and organizational management
consulting

* Marketed Las Vegas, NV to intermnational companies, as the Sr Economic Developrment Specialist with
the City of Las Vegas, NV

« Promoted the Town of Camp Verde, AZ to national site selectors and created marketing campaigns for
the Verde Vdlley Wine Trall as the Director of Economic Development for the Town of Camp Verde, AZ

« Marketed Super Bowl XLIt and annual Fiesta Bowl, as a Sr. Management Assistant with the Dept. of
Economic Development, City of Glendale, AZ
10 years of budget management - multi-million-dollar departmental budgets
M.Ed. In psychology/human relations and @ B.S degree in human resource management
Responsible for seeking and obtaining the Accredited Economic Developer Organization (AEDQO)
designation for the City of Las Vegas Economic and Urban Development Department through IEDC
Extensive experience working with WIOA partners in Arizona, New Mexico and Nevada
Nearly tfwo decades of municipal government experience in Finance, Marketing, and Community
Services

* Experience with local, state and federadl ordinances and statutes and strategic goal planning, 8 years of
economic and workforce developmeni

+ Strong management, leadership and budget background: Capital improvement projects and
operational grant management and Community Development Block Grant monies

e Graduate of civic leadership group in Yavapai County, Verde Valley Leadership and Cliy of Las Vegas
SEAL Leadership program

o  Completion of all required courses for Certified Economic Developer (CEcD) exam-Int’l Economic
Developrment Council (IEDC)

RELEVANT WORK HISTORY:

Washoe Tribe of Nevada and Cadlifornia, Gardnerville, Nevada

Tribal Administrator, August 2019 to present

| develop and maintain working relationships and communications with elective, administrative

and program officials fo ensure cooperative and effective management within Tribal Governmenial
operations. | am responsible for the timely evaluations of program directors and supervisors, and for the day-to-
day administration and organizational compliance with the Washoe Tribe. | develop personnel policies and
procedures as well as direct the aciivities of all Tribal Council approved programs by achieving the program's
objectives. | am responsible for the compliance with laws, rules, regulations, and policies. | develop operating
procedures and performance standards for Tribal programs. | direct the organization and operation of all Tribal
activities and report regularly to the Tribal Chairperson concerning the status of all assignmenis, duties, project
and functions of the various programs, activities and personnel. Currently, | am assisting in the annual
preparation and review process of annual budgets for all Tribal programs. | am responsible for the submissions
of financial reports and budgets to the Tribal Council and o funding agencies. | provide clear and concise
monthly reports to the Tribal Chairperson and Tribal Council of administration activities. | assist Program
Directors and Supervisors in all areas of management including but not limited to problem solving, grant funds
planning and compliance, property inventory, implementing of Tribal Council agenda procedures,
development and disiribution in a timely manner prior to scheduled Tribal meetings.

Evanly Consulting, Carson City/Las Vegas, Nevada

Principal, December 2017 o present (completing several contracts)

Under the framework of Christian principles, | draw on 23 years of municipal and workforce experience, paired
with a passion to betier the lives of communities by creating economic opportunities. By demonstrating the
highest and best use of tax-payer dollars within an entity, clients benefit from my organizational development
and transitional management expertise. | feach executives and staif how to be the best stewards of tax-payer



Evans — Page 2 of 4

dollars, and to work with the highest level of integrity by remembering that every action within a government
setting is subject to the headline test. 1 am an efficacy expert who maximizes operational processes while
enhancing quality assurance and eliminating unnecessary labor costs. Incorporating theoretical knowledge
from a master's degree in educational psychology and bachelor’s degree in human resources, | draw on real-
world applicaiion from my years of expertise. | specialize in environmental/cultural analyses and operational
efficiencies, as well as strategy and consensus building within diverse populations.

City of Las Vegas, Nevada

Sr. Economic Development Specialist, Economic and Urban Development, March 2014 - December 2017
Created marketing campaigns to entice international businesses and site selectors, administered workforce
development efforts including managing community partner Initiatives for tech training and market demand
analysis. Collaborated with multiple WIOA pariners including Workforce Connections to identify skills gaps and
coordinated education at the private and public level 1o meet those needs. Facilitfated implementation of
design and implementation of the Clark County ACT WorkReady initiative, providing the WorkKeys assessment
fo businesses and job seekers in the greater Las Vegas area. Insfrumental in bringing Iron Yard, Techimpact.
and RedFini to the downtown market. Awarded employee of the month, March 2017, for seeking out and
obtaining AEDO accreditation from IEDC, the first agency In the state of Nevada. Graduated from Leadership
Training Program in December 2017 and sought promotional opportunities. Worked with Redevelopment
Division to identify affordable housing needs within Ward 5§ in relation to downtown projects. Assisted division
with CRM databases: ExecutivePulse and MS Dynamics. Coordinated recruitment for department and licised
with human resources to provide information on workforce within the city. Utilized Excel to create meaningful
reporting and trends in the tech workforce sector.

Initiated, planned, coordinated and lead various large, complex, multi-funded, private and public marketing
and economic development and redevelopment projects and special research projects; represented the city's
intferest in projects; works directly with companies o diversify and expand the city's economic base and
provide retention, relocation, expansion and recruitment services. Developed and negotiated incentive
packages. Evaluated private development proposals for financial and fechnical feasibility; negoftiated
agreements for property transfer based on evaluations; assists in the structuring of development and loan
agreements. Monitored program budget. Collected and analyzed statistics for a variety of research projects.
Developed, reviewed, and andlyzed plans, reports, and applications. Evaluated the effectiveness of marketing
materials and approaches. Developed advertisements, press releases, and strategic marketing campaigns fo
expand businesses within the city. Served as licison between the city and businesses. civic organizations and
other stakeholders. Networked with businesses, frade groups, ¢civic organizations, realtors and leaders to learn of
new economic development and redeveloprnent opportunities.

Town of Camp Verde, Arizona

Economic Development Director/Finance Director, Depariment, March 2011 - December 2012

Marketed town to site selectors and businesses considering expansion into the Verde Valley. Implemented
changes in process or procedure in response to legislative changes, multi-tasked and prioritized multiple
projects while meeting deadlines, and responded to daily unanticipated changes. Developed, monitored, and
reconciled operating budgets, utitized Excel and other financial reporting software, and managed
development and agreements. Partnered with external organizations while managing staff internally. Identified
and make recommendations as it related to affordable housing needs within the community. Responsible for
marketing and business attraction, redevelopment and business retention, Event management and tourism
promofion responsibllities to include creation of monthly downtown event, marketing the wine industry, and
management of stakeholder buy-in for Highway 260 widening effort as well as a business Incubator assistance
center project. Lead efforts in researching relevant legislation regulations and assured documents produced
were complete and accurate; translated and implemented recommendations of policy issuance; interpreted
state laws and legislation to produce policies and procedures. Performed quantitative and qualitative analyses
to evaluate the effectiveness, productivity and efficiency of programs and operations and made
recornmendations on ways to improve administrative operations and procedures. Researched and
investigated new or improved systems and management practices;, evaluated and reported findings and
developed statistical and narrative data fo support recommendations and/or options. Lead work groups
addressing a variety of policy, procedural, and operational administrative issues. Prepared analyses,
summaries, and recommendations, responsible for budget management, CIP project planning, community



Evans — Page 3 of 4

outreach, strategic planning and demographic research. Business retention and expansion programs created
and implemented. Created press releases and worked directly with media to update community on current
projects.

Cily of Glendale, Arizona

Sr. Management Assistant, Economic Development Department, April 2009 to March 2011

Managed $3 million in Capital Improvement Project and PayGo funding and $600,000 department operational
funds, aonalyzed and recommended supplemental projects for upcoming fiscal year, managed redevelopment
plans for affordable housing projects, negotiated terms and tracked development agreements and purchase
confracts, conducted research on taxation and zoning rules, served on Diversity, United Way, Employee
Recognition, Property Management, and Downtown Redevelopment committees, and coordinated all efforts
for the business retention and expansion program,. Created council communication reporis and presentations.
Conducted client, demographic, project, and property research and tracked the Greater Phoenix Economic
Council leads.

Management Assistant, Marketing and Communications Deparfment, May 2007 to April 2009

Edited newslefter with subscriber base of 250,000, planned and managed campaigns promoting the
downtown and Westgate shopping disiricts, coordinated media efforts and conducted extensive research for
Super Bowl XU promotion components, created and managed the operational, Super Bowl XLI and Fiesta
Bowl budgets, created voter pamphlets, requests for proposals, council reports, grant applications, and was
awarded funding for multiple projects including video productions focusing on diverse ethnicities and historic
figures within Glendale. Administered grants and governmental contracts and expenditures. Analyzed and
resolved complex accounting issues.

Finance Administrative Coordinator, Finance Department, July 2005 to May 2007

Managed finance department budget and responsible for the annual output of the award winning Certified
Annuat Financial Report. Managed CDBG grant programs, Citizen Bond Election Committee which involved
advertising and recruitment of members, supernvised a team of 16 adminisiraiive and finance staff, coordinated
council report and agenda submissions, performed administrative ligison duties for city manager’s office,
facilitated staff meetings of 80+ and represented the Chief Financial Officer at various committee meetings.
Managed operational budget, reviewed financial proposals and managed all fiscal activities for the
administrative division. Applied sound revenue and expenditure methodologies using standard accounting
and statistical principles.

City of Scottsdale, Arizona

Assistant to City Auditor, Office of the City Auditor, May 2004 to July 2005

Managed operational budget and reconciled discrepancies by identifying variances and miscoded charges.
Recorded minutes for audit committee meetings involving city council members, edited and revised audit
reports, and provided documentation to support research findings for all audits conducted.

Assistant to General Manager, Community Services Department, August 2000 - May 2004

Managed deparimental operational budget for parks and recreation, and revised and submitted council
reports, reconciled $300,000 employee incentive budget monthly, coordinated calendar and deadlines
associated with council agenda, and managed neighborhood planning meetings. Managed reporting and
housing voucher releases for Human Services division within Community Services.

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND:

« Master'sin Education degree - Northern Arizona University, Paradise Valley, AZ - 2005

« Bachelor of Science degree in Applied Management - Grand Canyon University, Phoenix, AZ - 2002
and Autheored “Changing Perceptions about Affordable Housing” thesis

¢ |EDC, completion of six courses required for CEcD

¢ Graduate of civic servant Verde Valley Leadership organization, 2012

¢« Graduate of City of Las Vegas’ management training program (SEAL), 2017



Evans — Page 4 of 4

PERSONAL INTERESTS AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:

o “Big Sister” to two teenage girls - Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Yavapai County, AZ, and Greater Las Vegas,
NV, 2011-18

o 200 hours Registered Yoga Training - youth and adult yoga instructor, Las Vegas YMCA, 2015-current, 20
hours Registered Yoga Training- yoga for victims of trauma, 2016

s Middle Schoal Tutor - Language Arts, Grade Point Potential, 2016

» Sunday school teacher, Shadow Hills Baptist Church/Canyon Ridge Church, Las Vegas, NV, 2014-current

» Foster mom, Glendale, AZ, 2009




Jeff Klein

960 Glenhaven Place Phone: (702) 612-7871
Las Vegas, NV 89138 Email: jeff klein2@gmail.com

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

I am an experienced public relations professional who has conceptualized and executed hundreds of publicity
campaigns and events for clients in the entertainment, hospitality, travel, gaming and culinary industries. My skills
include excellent communication, project/event development and execution, media relations, team leadership,
organization, strategic planning and public speaking. A second-generation Nevadan, I was born in Las Vegas,
atiended college at the University of Nevada, Reno and have traveled extensively throughout the state. I am raising
my family in Nevada and have a passion for living in and promoting the state.

EXPERIENCE
Senior Account Executive, PR Plus, May 2011 - present

» Strategically plan, coordinate and execute both short-term and long-term public relations plans, using
traditional media relations and social media initiatives, for a wide variety of clients, ranging from casino
resorts to production shows, restaurant openings, charities and concerts. Highlights include:

o Coordinated and executed publicity campaigns for hundreds of headlining concerts and lounge
entertainment acts across Station Casinos’ 10 properties in Las Vegas and Henderson, with tasks
including drafting and distributing announcement press releases, working in conjunction with artist
management to arrange promotional interviews on multiple media formats, on-site concert
assistance and photographer acquisition.

o Organized and implemented grand opening celebrations, red carpet events and continued press
efforts for dozens of production shows, restaurants and entertainment destinations in Las Vegas.
Most notably:

= Entertainment - Riviera Hotel & Casino, Hooters Casino Resort, Comedy Cellar, Absinthe,
RockTellz & CockTails featuring The Jacksons, Meatloaf, Mike Tyson UNDISPUTED
TRUTH, Jabbawockeez, Barry Manilow, Hans Klok, Freakling Bros. The Trilogy of Terror,
Casino Dominoes, the Universal Domino League, Topgolf, etc.

» Events - Big Boys Toys Luxury and Innovation Exhibition, Fighters Only World MMA
Awards, World Series of Beer Pong, etc.

* Culinary - EDGE Steakhouse, La Belle Terre Bakery & Cafe, Big Whiskey’s American
Restavrant & Bar, etc.

o Orchestrated the national publicity campaign for Essence Vegas Cannabis Dispensary, from the
initial dispensary opening announcements to charitable endeavors and the historic transition from
medicinal to recreational sales in Nevada.

s National media placements included The Today Show, CNBC, HLN, The Hollywood
Reporter, Associated Press, Getty Images, Fox News, VICE and others.

* Selected as a panel member for the April 2018 Las Vegas Valley Chapter of the Public
Relations Society of America, focusing on public relations, marketing regulations and
business aspects of the cannabis industry.

o Developed and maintained the local, national and international publicity campaign for the revival
and renovation of the Westgate Las Vegas Resort & Casino, with tasks including the addition of
new entertainment offerings, gaming promotions, personnel changes, the world-famous Race &
Sports SuperBook, restaurant openings, crisis communications and charitable contributions.



Publicity efforts garnered hundreds of press hils, resulting in millions of readers, viewers and
listeners.
* Coordinated a celebratory ribbon cutting ceremony and media unveil for the newly-
renovated Race & Sports SuperBook.
* Creation of the March Madness Celebrity Bracket Competition, which resulted in more than
$10,000 in donations to local charities.
o Assisted the Salvation Army of Southern Nevada in the promotion of its charitable and social
services and initiatives, including the annual Bell Ringing and Bell Kettle Season, Toy & Joy,
Water for Hope and bottled water drives.

* Maintain day-to-day relationships with clients, while proactively developing and implementing new
marketing strategies, targeting and achieving client goals, composing press materials, leading team
meetings, media training and crisis communication.

* Actively pitch media, while garnering and maintaining local, national and international media
relationships.

* Organize and oversee all aspects of client events, including timeline, budget, invites, RSVPs, red carpets,
ribbon cutting and media attendance, in addition to coordinating and overseeing the tasks of the event team
to correspond with the client’s goals.

* Collaborate with company owner in the drafting and development of new business pitches and proposals.

* Write, edit and distribute press releases, media advisories, client biographies and other press materials.

Assistant Account Executive, Kirvin Doak Communications, December 2009 -May 2011

* Development and execution of public relations plans, including story creation, materials development,
media targeting, media pitching and coordination.

» Conceptualized and wrote public relations and promotional plans with objectives, goals, strategies and
tactics.

* Managed day-to-day relationship with clients.

* Developed press releases, press kit materials, fact sheets and advisories.

Account Coordinator, Kirvin Doak Communications, December 2007 - December 2009

* Assisted in planning, coordinating and implementing media and special events, including the opening of
six production shows on the Las Vegas Strip, the CineVegas Film Festival, the first anniversary of CSI:
The Experience and red carpet events.

* Developed and maintained relationships with national and local media members.
» Coordinated and arranged promotions in Las Vegas and surrounding markets.
* Maintained and produced support materials such as photos, press kits and b-roll.

* Developed press releases, press kit materials, fact sheets and advisories.

EDUCATION

University of Nevada, Reno, December 2006
B.S. in Journalism

Journalism sequence: Advertising

Minor: Photography

ACTIVITIES/ INTERESTS
* Volunteer at Three Square Food Bank Southern Nevada, Habitat For Humanity and other local charities.

* Interests include cycling, hiking and baseball.



Ari Levin

7933 Astral Ave, Las Vegas, NV 89149 » Office:702.363-9709 Cell: 702.460-0745
*Ari@jglonproductions.com

PROFILE

Provide complex and sensitive management and programmatic support to large departments; oversee

assigned administrative support functions including budgets.

Chief of Operations, using both qualitative and quantitative analytics to identify potential issues, and

resolution recommendations, with prioritization and deployment of business process improvement

initiatives across the organization.

Employment History

US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, June 2019- Current
Government Affairs Manager/ Partnership Specialist

Nationally recognized from the Washington DC office as being #1 in the region, for
securing the largest partnerships for the State of Nevada.

Create and implement community outreach plans, for the highest level of government
officials. Both on state and federal level.

Engage and educate local business associations, non-profit organizations, Faith based
organizations, chambers of commerce, city council members on congressional issues
Coordinate with County and State departments, Legislative staff and other entities
efforts to develop and enact proposals for County-sponsored legislation and/or budget
proposals at the Federal and/or State levels.

Establish partnership agreements with federal, tribal, state and local governments,
and/or local businesses and community groups to develop specific strategies to
eliminate enumeration barriers in specific regions in support of the Decennial Census.

JOLON Productions: April 2010 - June 2019
Vice President of Economic Development and Cultural Affairs

General Manager and full public affairs and government responsibilities for companies:
P& L., administrative staff, executive staff, and strategic planning process.

Supervision of over 250 direct reports, and over $8 million in budgets.

Chief Lobbyist, and Head of International Protoco! for all cultural events, labor, real
estate, and business developments and negotiations for the City of Las Vegas, and the
State of Nevada. Lobbyist for international government relations with: Vice Premiers,
Ministers of Culture, Consulate Generals.

Serve as director of protocol for all interactions by the Governor, Lt. Governor and
Mayor or his representatives with foreign dignitaries and domestic officials of
prominence.

l|Page



Coordinating all hospitality, and logistics, and providing briefings on customs and

cultural details

¢ Coordination with the international trade team, plan and execute trade missions and other
international travel by high level dignitaries and public officials.

s Provide guidance to the diplomatic and consular community on City-related issues,
including responding to emergency situations involving foreign nationals

» Act as the City representative on major projects affecting city government, serve on
various external boards and commissions of other agencies to ensure the City's interests
are represented.

s  Work with all state, federal and local agencies, as well as, industry groups on programs,
legislative issues, and workforce development.

e Executive Producer sixteen years in a2 row of CinemaCon and ShoWest, working directly
with all major movie studios and celebrities.

¢ Coordinate with County departments, Legislative staff and other entities efforts to
develop and enact proposals for County-sponsored legislation and/or budget proposals at
the Federal and/or State levels.

e Chief negotiator for all labor and union negotiations and grievances, on the local and
national level.

¢ Developed communications for global awareness programs, print circulations,

community awareness and national advertising campaigns and media plans.

OPRAH WINFREY- November 2012- October 2016
Producer and Director

+ (reated and Directed entire new look of show
Lead producer for all productions on “Where are They Now,” producing over 30
episodes still airing.

¢ Incharge of all cast and crew and responsible for overall budgets including locations,
equipment, crew, and post.

Tropicana Hotel and Casino: October 2005 - April 2010
Corporate Director of Economic Development and Entertainment

e High-level executive at hotel, full P&L responsibility for more than ten different
departments, over 150 direct reports, and over $10 million in annual budgets.

+ Director for five regional properties encompassing Las Vegas, Reno, Laughlin, and
Atlantic City.

¢ Brought the 2007 NBA All-Star Game to Las Vegas

s Negotiated and arbitrated all labor and union Collective Bargaining Agreements and
grievances.

*  Worked with state and federal legislators, prepares letters, testifies before legislative
committees and meets with Legislative members and staff to advocate County positions
on State and Federal legislation and budget proposals

2|Page



Star Trek: The Experience {Paramount/Viacom Corporation): February 1994 — October 2005
Director of Economic Development and Entertainment

Total project over $75 million dollars.

Coordinate with local, state, and federal governments (including City Council and City
agencies) as needed, on relevant events with international aspects not involving the
Mayor

Negotiate with all local, state and federal governments and officials

Complete creation and implementation of all ecommerce applications, including
websites, social media, and sales driven ecommerce initiatives.

Managed, directed and trained over 450 employees. Interviewed over 3000 applicants a
day.

EDUCATION

Master’s in Public Administration (3.7 GPA, 2010) University of Oklahoma

Pi Alpha Alpha National Public Administrators Society
Royal Shakespeare Company 1992 Stratford- upon-Avon, England
Bachelors 1990 (Deans List) Arizona State University, Tempe

J|Page






TONY LYLE

3476 CHAMPLAIN DRIVE » SOUTH LAKE TAHOE « CALIFORNIA 96150 « 530-307-2726
LYLE. TONY@GMAIL.COM

OBJECTIVE
e Executive Leadership Level Tourism, Travel & Leisure Position

SUMMARY

* Arecognized executive level steward with 25+ years of experience in the Leisure, Tourism & Travel Industry &
Destination Marketing.

* Accustomed to working with and promoting multi-faceted companies while providing effective organizational
leadership and timely goal delivery.

» Experienced in strategic planning and diplomacy while working with multi-jurisdictional authorities and
programs.

e Known and respected for creativity, competitive drive, honesty, integrity, critical thinking, and one who
inspires while being diligent and assiduous.

» Specialties: Leadership; Public speaking & presentations; Process improvement; Brand management; Budget
management & reporting; Public relations; Consumer & travel trade program design & implementation; and
Common interest development.

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

Oct 12 - Present LAKE TAHOE VISITORS AUTHORITY www, h.com
Vice President, Tourism Development Lake Tahoe, California/Nevada

s The Lake Tahoe Visitors Authority is chartered with promoting South Shore, Lake Tahoe and achievinga
measurable impact on tourism numbers in the region. Marketing programs like research initiatives,
advertising, trade shows, and public relations all work together to drive visitors to the destination.

¢ Primary Responsibilities: Strategic marketing distribution partnerships, planning & implementation with 3
party travel trade partners; Digital marketing oversight & support; Local, regional, national & international
partner relations; Data & research management.

Jul 18 ~ Present HIGH SIERRA VISITORS COUNCIL www.californiahighsierra.com
President Lake Tahoe, California

e The role of the High Sierra Visitors Council is to market the High Sierra region of California, the 11 destination
marketing organizations within it and each of their jurisdictions. Partners include Lake Tahoe and Yosemite.

¢ The primary focus of the organization is to manage digital presence and online marketing; itinerary
development; and expansion of French visitation.

Aug 19 - Present MOUNTAIN TRAVEL SYMPOSIUM www.mtntrvl.com

Advisory Board Member Lake Tahoe, California
« The Mountain Travel Symposium Advisory Board is comprised of 27 members from each sector of the
industry who demonstrate an incredible commitment to the future of mountain travel as well as to Mountain
Travel Symposium.

Apr11-0ct12 ARAMARK PARKS & DESTINATIONS www.zephvrcove.com
Director, Sales & Marketing Lake Tahoe, Nevada

¢ Responsible and accountable for all sales and marketing efforts for Lake Tahoe Cruises and Zephyr Cove
Resort. Lake Tahoe Cruises comprises the M.S. Dixie [l, a 520-passenger vessel; and the Tahoe Paradise, an 82-
foot, two-story luxury yacht, Zephyr Cove Resort offers 28 cabins and 5 lodge units; a 93 space RV park; 57
campsites; a full-service restaurant; marina; beach bar & grill; popular wedding and reception site; and a
winter snowmobile operation.

e Responsible for initiatives that resulted in a reversal of annual revenue decline with measurable YOY revenue
growth. With a marketing budget of less than $400K, FY11 revenues exceeded $12M.



TONY LYLE Page 2 of 2

Apr 09 - Apr 11 SKISET www.skiset.com
Vice President, North America Vail, Colorado

e Orchestrated an establishment and development project to bring Europe’s largest ski and snowboard rental
company to North America with invelvement in all aspects of setting up and running a new start-up business.

o Successful project development resulted in the North American network growing to over 50 independent
partner ski and snowboard rental stores with marketing efforts focused on driving direct business through
various integrated marketing and PR initiatives.

Jul 06 - Jan 09 VAIL RESORTS WWW.SN0WLSA.COMm
Head of International Marketing & Sales Avon, Colorado

* Directed all corporate international marketing & sales personnel and associated marketing & sales efforts for
mountain products and owned & managed lodging properties at the Colorado resorts of Vail, Beaver Creek,
Breckenridge and Keystone, plus Heavenly in California/Nevada.

» With a focus on sales through the international 3™ party vendor channel of distribution the total international
net sales increased by 20% during my tenure to over $10M. The marketing budget was only spenton a
cooperative basis with 37 party vendor partners to leverage funds, stretch the dollars and provide the ability
to measure ROI and success.

e Voting member on the Colorado Tourism Office, international Promotions Committee.

Aug 05 -Jul 06 MONTBLEU RESORT CASINC & SPA www.montbleuresort.com
Manager, National Sales Lake Tahoe, Nevada

e Responsible for corporate, incentive & leisure group business and accountable for domestic and international
wholesale at this 437-room property.

Apr 02 - Aug 05 HEAVENLY MOUNTAIN RESORT www.skiheavenly.com
Manager, International Marketing & Sales Lake Tahoe, Nevada

e Reporting directly to the Vice President Marketing and responsible for the international marketing and sales
efforts for mountain products and local lodging property partnership.

e  While working with local, regional and statewide marketing entities, mountain product international net sales
increased by 25% during my tenure.

s Co-Chairperson of the international subcommittee for the ‘Ski Lake Tahoe' marketing organization.

EDUCATION

Sep91-Jun95 LIVERPOOL JOHN MOORES UNIVERSITY www livim.ac.uk
Bachelor of Education (Hons.), Outdoor & Science Education Liverpool, England

INTERESTS

s Family: My wife & kids; The Great Outdoors: Skiing, Snowboarding, Camping, Hiking; International Travel:
Unique, off the beaten track destinations; New Technology.



‘swelfoid

S} pue epeasp |9Ael ) BuipieBSal suonejuasaid oygnd axep “swelboid Juswdojaaap uoneunsap ay) pue

‘sapinb |aael) |lenuue jo uononpoud ‘sdiysiosuods Juaas uequn abeuepy “seiouabe jeinyno sy ||e 104 Juswdojaaap
gam sbeuews 0) SJUEJINSUOD |BUIBIXS YIIM YIOAA “SiayJew jeuoewssiul JyBie ul siabeueuwr 1o3Jew yim

sweuboid pue 196pnqg ygn puelg ayy abeuey “10j0a1Q BURSHIEWN BY) YYIM UOISIA BIP2W PUB aAea1d aping ‘ueld
oiBsjens pue podas lenuue ue se yans sjuswinaop BuipinG esodwoo pue dojeaaq Juswpedsp ay) uiyum sidoad
any-Auem) asinadns Aljoaig swes) sisuped AJsSnpuj pue sa|eg pug 'suoneisy aand 'Buneiep 10 uonesbsiu
ay) uo sasnso) Jopang Aindsqg auy) ‘Ajleoyioadg “WISIINO ] JO UCISIAIC 38U} 0) 0] dIysIapea) ||_J3AD papIAcld

Jojoaaq Lindaq ‘saieyy ainjng pue wsunol juswiedaqg epeaaN
8LIZL—8LIL

Juawpedag syl uiypm sweiboid

pue saio1jod ay) Jo uonensiuiwpe ay Buiuiaauod [asunocd [eba) pue ‘sucisIAIP 'SUOISSILILLIOD By} 0) SAIsuodsal

24 pPUB auaAUDY JuallEda(] SY) JO SSBUSAIDSYS SU] 8OUEHUS O] SjUB)INSUDD PUB ‘'S1aydieassal ‘syadxa Aljsnpul
yum sdiysuoneal ping “Aubajul |easy s juswpedaq ay Buyosjold ‘Aousiedsuesy oygnd Joy spodas [eoueuy
aonpoud pue ‘sessad0.d uoiien|eas Jjuswaldui pue ajeas?) ‘ueid 216ajesls B uiyIm pauljino sjeob sy} spiemo)
ssal6o0ud Bunjew st juswpedag auy) ainsua jey; sysewyduaq dojaasp pue 'yels o) aouepinb apiaoid ‘safueys
ABajeys Jo joedwi ay) Uo SUOHEPUSWILIODB] A)eR “AJISNPUl LWSLNO) SU) uiylm pue sanuabe |ejuswuianob

yum sdiystauped abeinoou] 'saanelul A8y S,10UI9A0) BY) PUB UOISSIW S juswnedaq] auy) J0 SAIB)S! BIB SHOLD
suonesIuNWLLIe) pue Bunsyiew ainsug "sj@jiew |BuoleuIsjul PUB JISAWOP Ul BPRASN 0} WSLINO) pUE SS3USIEME
|esnyn2a sjowoid 0} uoisia a1Balens e Joa] "uoissas aalelsiBa) ay) w spasu oewwelboid pue Lejebpng

[le Juasaldal pue aayjo sJousanog) auy) o) sanianoe juawnedap (e podas ‘salouabe S)e)s Noy 40 101N SY

1039341 Bunjoy ‘sae)y ainjng pue wsunoy juawiedag epeasnN
juasaid—alLiel

Ai1o3sIH qaopn

BYNS 3OO YOSOIAW |IN} U JUBIDROIH
0l 1Q0JoY pue ‘doysojoyd ‘lojelsn)| ‘ubissqu| ;alemyos aqopy Buimojjo) ayj ujusnj4 e
([ELD)EW S3jES pue
‘solydesb moysapey) ‘solydestyspe eipsw je00s ‘Buisiusape [enbip pue juud ‘Sa)is gam JO UONJDXa SAIEaID) e
yoeanno BIpawl |BIo0s pue Juswdojaaap Jusjuon) e
sonAleue pue ‘BuiAng eipawt 'Abajesis eipapy
swabeuew oibajels pue puelg »
uswabeuew pue yuswdojaaap Jabpng
wawdojasp [euoissajold pue juswsbeuew yeis ‘diysiapes) wea|

SIS

ousay ‘BpeAsN J0 Alisiaalu — (WnnowIng Buisiuaapy) WS|ewNor ‘'suy Jo Jojayoeg
uonesnpgy

oba ® soapip
‘ubteduies uj ey asua4 yuoQ
spiemy Appy JaAlIS 9102

S31195 09pIA JapISU]
[EID1BWILLICY) JSEDPEOIE JSJUIAN
spiemy Appy JBAllS L102

Bunumidon enuep puelq

Py seaued sdui peoy
aoualiadx3 Ajleay |BeNUIA 09
BpINS SJONSIA EPEASN |9AB ]
spiemy Appy p|oD L1L0Z
2pINg aINiND @ SHY EPRASN
‘Gunayley Jualuoy Woisny jsag
piemy oi|od 8102

a)iscuoIy sdil | peoy
PIBMY DIOD EM 6102

ISpIEMY JUDIDY

A Sav




"$901n0s3aJ pue sa|ly Josloid'sjasse

Buipuelq jo aalysle pauejuiely ‘ssipueyalaw |euonowold Joj soydelb padojaaaq “sisla|smau-a pue sise(q

jlewa 'subiedweo sajes Buipnioul ‘SUOIEIIUNLILIOD [EUISIXS PUE [BUIS)UI JO} 82BN B pajeal) ‘aouasaid
gam ajesodion pue ‘sjeuaiew Juswio|dws pue Buginioal ‘|elaie| 0o sajes ‘Buisiuaape suluo uid ul Buipueiq
[ensia pafeuew pue paysijqe}sy ‘auIdaluan) pue 'syda | aue|d 'seaInosay 410 ‘Buyels uepeds ‘Apeay Joge]
:sauedwod Buiye)s |euoneu jo Awe) e 10} sjasse pueiq jo uonanposd pue ubisap ay) 10} s|qisucdsal Japes| wes |

J0)saaq MY “*au| anjganil
cLis—0oLiL

"S|EUAEW

Yoealno Jouop pue ‘saiydelB BuipuAem pue JIqIyxa ‘Sa2IN0sal |leuoleanpa papueiq do@asp 0s)y "B|pawl
JEID0S pue ‘salisgam ‘SISe|] [IBWwa Se yons eipaw [enbip Jo) sjuawale oiydelb pue ‘'spodal [enuue ‘spe ‘lew
10841p ‘s1api8jsmau ‘sainyoolq ‘soBoj Buipnjoul sjeuajew Buneyiew jo uononpotd pue ubisap ay) 1o} ajgiIsuodsay

isjepadg Bunasyie ‘wnasny A1aA09s1q 9yl
vLI8—ELIL

'$80Ua18)u0o Japjoyayels s Aousbe ay)

Joy [ei3jelI00 Bunoddns pauBisaq “dde ajiqow pue saysqam s, Aouabe ay) Jo) ssuspadxe (|N) aoeuaul pue (XN)
aouauadxe Jasn padojaasg "sweiboid ayou Jayjo pue ‘sasnysolq syied ajels ‘sjeusiew Bullayew [euoneuaju
‘SaInyo0.q wWnasnw ‘dew ajels ay) a1 suoeqnd pue $ainya0.q (e j0 Jualudo|SAap SAIB3I3 MESIBAQD
‘weiboud teuned aajesado-0 sepeasN |aAel] jo uononpold pue ‘ubisap ‘uopdasuod ay) 1o} S|qisuodsay
‘BIpaLW |B120s pue ‘Juud ‘|enbip ‘gam ey} Joj aAIjRaID JO UORNIaXa pue uonejaidiaiul auyy ul wes) uononpoid
Aauabe auy pajang ‘puelq 3109 ay) Bulngjuew a)iym siojesipul asueurtopad pue aosuaipne 19bie) pauap

ay) y1oq Ssalppe 1eu} SUOHEIILNLLLLOD [BNSIA aAI10aya OjuU) saaljaalqo Bunasiew Bulwiojsuel) 10) a|qisuodsay

10}2341Q Y ‘epeAaN [eARIL
9LI9—PLIG

‘g)se|ga Jauled Ansnpul pue Jawnsuod Ajjuowl

Buipnjoul ‘saanehiul aBajens pue aneasd Bunasiew |IBws mesiaaQ 'dnpunoy (giny pue aduaiajuod) s JoUIan0s)
aL}—SsaoualajuoD Japjoyaye)s s Aouabe ayy 10} |eia1e)|09 Suioddns paynoaxy ‘dde ajiqow pue saysgam

s Aousbe ay) 104 ‘|aas) |euonEu pue (220 B uo sdnoub Asnpul wsunoy u sjedigiped pug ‘WSUNG ] Uo UCISSIWWOYD
epeAaN 3} 0} s1daouod aaieas pue saifialels Juasald ‘sajisgam Asusbe Jo aoueusjulew pUE UCIINIBXD
Buipnjoul ‘yuawdojaaap |eNbIP (| esiaadng “uoYBIIP BAIRS.D pue Juswabeuew puelq pajoang "a|igow pue juld
‘lenBip }seapeo.q Buipnjoul sAng eipaw disaliop 3asJano pue Abajens eipaw e dojaasp o) Aousbe Bunayew
pajelBajul U Yum uoneloqe||od Ul payJopa ABajens lejano pue ued Bupyaxiew (enuue ay) padojaaag 186png
BuioBuo pue saanoalqo [easy Juswpedsp Buaxiew sy} paysigeisd ‘ueid aibajels uswypedsp Bunsyiew ay ul
paupno sjeob paagxs Jo yoeal sweiboud e Buunsua ‘synsa) pasoyucly "epeasn |19ael] 10) Bulwweibold uaaup
-1ouped pue ‘aAieasn ‘leybip ‘Buisiyaape 'yaseasal Buipiebal sananoe yels Juawpedsp Bunayiew ay) pabeuey

192130 Bunaiey j21ygd ‘epeasp |aaei]
81/1—9L/9

60568 AN 'ouay
3All([ poomasoy DEB

woljieutfgzof qaug
P6ELTILSLL

AP e




weiboid wsunoj pue AyendsoH smopesiy aa8xani
93ILWIOY SBAAIBS JIY OUBY

19UN0Y) AD)[O4 WISUNG| SBIBIS UIBISIAN

$10)98JiJ WSUNO] 8JEIS 10 |I2UN0Y) [RUCHEN
SJ0J22.1(] JO PIEOY UOIBID0SSY |3ARIL 'S N

YE|0SIS JOUIBAOS) O} I3qQuS Jauige)

SUOJ}ISOd pieog JuUILIng

EPG9-€LL-GLL

dnois) euodiisg

SUOHE[aY 2l|QNd JO Juapisaid 39IA
uojayg apoer

8rlc-8L£-0LS

Auoyiny sioysip soye ) axe
J0)ang Aindag

uopeg ang

£¢¢9-069-64L

sleyy ([eimnD 7 WSLINO] jo juawpedaq epeasN
1013211 Aindaq Jawioy

uewpalig Aieq

088¢-268-20L

Aoyiny sIoNsIA pue uonuaAuor) sebap se
Juswdojaaaqg [eqolo) Jo Joaig

BABNUE||IA |9RJEY

099.-128-G17

Aloyiny SI0JISIA 9 UDHUSAUOT) sHJedg ouay
O30 pue juspisald

auo|aqg lud

LR ITEYETERY)

60568 AN ‘oudy
QAlIJ PoOMBsSOy OEB

wod jiewbgob gaug
96EL'ZILSLL

AnSET







Proposed Regulation
LCB File No. RO80-18

PN
‘NEVADA-






PROPOSED REGULATION OF
THE COMMISSION ON TOURISM
LCB File No. R080-18

May 23,2018

EXPLANATION - Matter in {fafics 15 new, matter in brackets [emitted-matesial] 1s material to be omitted

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 231.200 and 233B.100.

A REGULATION relating to tourism; creating provisions governing the procedure for any
interested person to petition the Commission on Tourism of the Department of Tourism
and Cultural Affairs to adopt, file, amend or repeal any regulation; and providing other
matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Existing law authorizes the Commission on Tourism of the Department of Tourism and
Cultural Affairs to adopt regulations to administer and carry out the policies and programs of the
Division of Tourism. (NRS 231.200)

Existing law authorizes any interested person to petition an agency requesting the
adoption. filing, amendment or repeal of any regulation. Existing law requires such a petition to
be accompanied with relevant data, views and arguments. Existing law requires, upon the
submission of such a petition, an agency to, within 30 days: (1) deny the petition in writing,
stating its reasons; or (2) initiate regulation-making proceedings. Existing law requires each
agency to prescribe by regulation: (1) the form for such petitions; and (2) the procedure for the
submission, consideration and disposition of such petitions. (NRS 233B8.100) This regulation
provides that, pursuant to existing law, any interested person may petition the Commission for
the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of any regulation. This regulation requires such a
petition to be: (1) in writing on a form prescribed by the Commission; and (2) include certain
information, including any relevant data, views and arguments that support the petition. If a
petition does not include such information, this regulation authorizes the Commission to refuse
to act on a petition. This regulation also requires the Commission to, within 30 days after the
date on which the petitioner filed the petition: (1) notify the petitioner of the Commission’s
decision regarding the petition: and (2) if the Commission approves the petition, initiate
regulation-making proceedings.

Section 1. Chapter 231 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read

as follows:

-

L.CB Draft of Proposed Regulation RO80-18



I.  Pursuant to NRS 233B.100, any interested person may petition the Commission on
Tourism created by NRS 231.170 for the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of any
regulation,

2. A petition for the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of a regulation must be in
writing on o form prescribed by the Commission and must include:

(a) The name and address of the petitioner;

(b) The reason for petitioning for the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of the
regulation;

(¢c) The proposed lunguage of the regulation to be adepted, filed, amended or repealed;

(d) The statutory authority for the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of the regulation;
and

(e) Any relevant data, views and arguments that support the petition for the adoption,
Siling, amendment or repeal of the regulation.

3. The Conunission may refuse to act upon a petition for the adoption, filing, amendment
or repeal of a regulation if the petition does not inclade the information required by
subsection 2.

4. The Commission will notify the petitioner in writing of the Commission’s decision
regarding the petition within 30 days after the date on which the petitioner filed the petition. If
the Commission approves the petition for the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of a
regulation, the Commission will initiate regulation-making proceedings concerning that

regulation within 30 days after the date on which the petitioner filed the petition,

=

LCB Drafi of Proposed Regulation R080-18



